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High Desert Partnership, Applicant, James Siebert, Agent, request an amendment to a condition
imposed by the Board of County Commissioners on an approved Plat for Colinas del Sol. The Plat
created sixteen 12.5 acre lots and was conditioned to 0.20 acre feet per year water restriction per lot.
The Applicant is requesting an amendment to the Plat condition to allow 0.25 acre feet per year
water restriction per lot. The property is zoned as Rural Residential and is located at Colinas del Sur
Road, via Hwy 285, within Section 25, Township 15 North, Range 9 East, (Commission District 5),

SDA-2.

Vicinity Map:

DATE: November 29, 2016
TO: Board of County Commissioners %
FROM: Jose E. Larraflaga, Development Review Team Leader%
VIA: Katherine Miller, County Manager
Penny Ellis-Green, Growth Management Director?c% S
Vicki Lucero, Building and Development Services Manager ‘—;ia"a e
FILE REF.: BCC CASE # PCPA 16-5240 Colinas del Sol Plat Amendment
ISSUE:

SITE

102 Grant Avenue - P.O. Box 276 - Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504-0276 - 505-986-6200 - FAX:
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SUMMARY:

The current owner of the property acquired the property by warranty deed recorded as Instrument
# 1414116 in the Santa Fe County Clerk’s records dated December 30, 2005. James W. Siebert
& Associates are authorized by the property owner to pursue the request for an amendment to a
Plat condition to allow 0.25 acre feet per year water restriction per lot, as evidenced by a copy of
the written authorization contained in the record. (Exhibit 3)

On April 10, 2007, the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) approved Preliminary and Final
Development Plan and Plat for a 16 lot Residential Subdivision on 202.03 acres. The BCC
imposed a number of conditions of approval on the subdivision. (Exhibit 4) The Plat was
recorded on October 23, 2007. The developer of the subdivision has complied with the majority
of the conditions imposed by the BCC. One of the conditions was to limit the water use to 0.20
acre feet per lot. The Applicant is now requesting to amend this condition and requests 0.25 acre
feet of water per lot per yeat.

Condition # 9 of the 15 staff conditions presented to the BCC at the April 10, 2007, hearing,
stated, *“water use on this property will be restricted to 0.25 acre feet per year per lot.” The BCC
amended this condition to state, “water use on this property will be restricted to 0.20 acre feet per
year per lot.” The Applicant and the Applicants Agent were allowed to speak in regards to the
amendment ptior to a final vote on the motion, The BCC approved the 16 lot Subdivision (Case
# 'S 06-5290) with staff conditions and amendments to condition #3 and #9 by a 3-2 voice vote,

At the time of approval the subdivision was subject to the criteria set forth by the Eldorado
moratorium (County Ordinance 2001-14). Section C.2 of Ordinance 2001-14 stated: “New
subdivision, land division and master plan applications which do not rely on EDU water service
will be processed subject to the Santa Fe County Land Development Code, as amended.

~ However, no density adjustments beneath 12.5 acres per dwelling unit, the basic Basin Fringe
Hydrologic Zone Minimum Lot Size will be considered, and these approvals will be contingent -
upon acceptable site specific hydrology reports, water use covenants and proper well drilling and
construction techniques which protect and optimize the source of supply”.

The lots are being served by three shared wells. A geohydrology report was prepared and
submitted with the Preliminary and Final Plat and Development Plan application in 2006 which
demonstrated a 100-year water supply for the 16 lot subdivision known as Colinas det Sol. A
community water system was not required due to the size and number of lots involved per the
Land Development Code (Article V, Table 5.1). The report supported sufficient water supply of
0.25 acre feet per year for each lot.

The current County Hydrologist reviewed the 2006 Geohydrology Report and found that the

proposed amendment to restrict water use to 0.25 acre fect per year (afy) for the proposed

subdivision is consistent with the Sustainable Land Development Code (SLDC) and is supported
by the geohydrologic report. (Exhibit 5)

Notice requirements were met as per Chapter 4, Section 4.6.3., General Notice of Application
Requiring a Public Hearing, of the SLDC. In advance of a hearing on the Application, the
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Applicant provided an affidavit of posting of notice of the hearing, confirming that public notice
posting regarding the Application wds made for fifteen days on the property, beginning on
November 28, 2016. Additionally, notice of hearing was published in the legal notice section of
the Santa Fe New Mexican on November 22, 2016, as evidenced by a copy of that legal notice
contained in the record. Notice of the hearing was sent to CO’s, RO’s, and owners of land within
300 of the subject property and a list of persons sent a mailing is contained in the record.
(Exhibit 6)

This Application was submitted on October 6, 2016,

APPROVAL SOUGHT
An amendment to the Colinas del Sol Plat condition and water restrictive covenants to allow 0.25
acre feet per year water restriction per lot.

GROWTH MANAGEMENT AREA
SDA-2

ZONING DISTRICT
Rural Residential (RUR) 10 acre base density

WATER SUPPLY :

In 2006 a geohydrology report was prepared demonstrating 100-year water supply for the 16 lot
subdivision. A community water system was not required due to the size and number of lots
involved as per prior Code requirements (Article V, Table 5.1 of the Land Development Code).
The report was reviewed by the New Mexico Office of the State Engineer and Santa Fe County
Water Resources Department.

The lots are served by three shared domestic wells,

The current County Hydrologist reviewed the 2006 Geohydrology Report and found that the
water restriction of 0.20 acre-foot per lot was not based on the results of the geohvydrologic
report, but rather a requirement of the BCC based on a moratorium in place at the time. Under
the most conservative scenario, the geohydrologic report supports (1725 acre~-foot of water per
12,5 acre lot which exceeds the value in the SLDC of 0.25 acre-foot and demonstrates an
acceptable long-term drawdown over a 100 year period.

~ The current County Hydrologist comments also stated the following: The proposed subdivision
is within EAW&SD’s service area but it is unknown if it is within 400 feet of any of their
waterlines. The distance from the proposed subdivision to EAW&SD’s waterline needs to be
determined in order to establish if it is required to connect to EAW&SD’s water system. If it is
determined that it is not required to connect to EAW&SD’s water system, EAW&SD should be
given the opportunity to comment on the proposed amendment to increase water usage to 0.25

afy.
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Applicant response: The developer did contact the Eldorado Area Water & Sanitation
District (EAWSD) and received a letter stating that, a commitment by EAWSD to provide
water service to the subdivision will require the execution of a Development Agreement
with EAWSD. (Exhibit 7)

The Applicant is not proposing to subdivide further with this application. The SLDC does not
require the existing 16 lot Subdivision to connect to the EAWSD as long as there is no further
subdivision of the existing lots.

The current County Hydrologist comments also stated the following: the water quality report
listed four constituents that exceed Secondary Maximum Contaminant Levels; aluminum,
sodium, pH, and turbidity which must be addressed.

The Applicant submitted a letter dated 3/5/2007, from the County Water Resources
Department which stated that the contaminants should be listed in the disclosure
statement. The contaminants included aluminum, sodium, pH, and turbidity which exceed
the safe drinking water standards (Exhibit )

Staff has reviewed the disclosure statement recorded with the County Clerk under document
#1503893, as a stand-alone document, Page 8 of the disclosure statement does mention the
contaminants and the proposed mitigation of those contaminants. (Exhibit 9)

EXISTING DEVELOPMENT
The 16 lots are vacant, the three wells are in place, water lines are in place, and the roads are
built out. ' '

AGENCY REVIEW
County Hydrologist Conditional Approval

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

On April 10, 2007, the Board of County Commissioners approved Preliminary and Final
Plan and Plat for a 16 lot Residential Subdivision and enacted a condition to restrict the
water use to 0.20 acre feet of water per lot per year, therefore Staff cannot support the
Applicants request to increase the water use to (.25 acre feet per year.

It is at the discretion of the BCC to consider an amendment to the approved condition. The
BCC may consider the information presented by staff and the Applicant to allow the
increase of water use to 0.25 acre feet of water per lot per year. If the BCC approves an
amendment to the condition, staff recommends the following conditions be imposed:

1. The Plat for the 16 lot Subdivision, known as Colinas del Sol, shall be re-
recorded illustrating all prior conditions, include reference to the existing
disclosure statement, and include reference to revised water restrictive covenants.

N
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2. Prior to the re-recordation of the Plat, the three existing wells shall be re-tested
for water quality, water quality tests shall be submitted to the County
Hydrologist and water treatment systems be installed at the well head if water
quality is outside acceptable standards.

3. The revised water restrictive covenants shall limit the water use per lot to 0.25
acre feet of water per year, address the water contaminants and the proposed
mitigation of those contaminants, require that a water meter be installed to each
lot and annual meter readings be submitted to the County.

4, A note on the re-recorded Plat shall state: only one dwelling is permitted per lot.
No accessory dwellings shall be permitted on any lot.

EXHIBITS:
1. Applicants Report
2. Recorded Plat
3. Real estate contract/Letter of Authorization
4. April 10, 2007, BCC Minutes
5. County Hydrologist Memo
6. Legal Notice
7. EAWSD Letter
8. 3/2/2007 County Water Resources Dept, Letter
9. Disclosure Statement

10. Restrictive Covenants
11. 2007 Final Order (Case #06-5290)
12. Aerial Photo of Property
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JAMES W, SIEBERT
AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

915 MERCER STREET * SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87505
(505) 983-5588 * FAX (505) 989-7313
jim@jwsieberf.com

October 6, 2016

Vicki Lucero

Building and Development Services Manager
102 Grant Avenue

Santa Fe, NM 87504

N

Re:  Colinas del Sol, Case #8-06-5290

Dear Ms. Lucero:

On behalf of Russ McMillan, owner/developer of Colinas del Sol I am requesting a plat
amendment and modification to the recorded water restrictive covenants changing the amount of
annual water use per lot from .2 acre feetto .25 acre feet. This subdivision consists of 16 minimum
12.5 acre lots. The subdivision is located within the Eldorado at Santa Fe Subdivision and was
approved by the Board of County Commissioners on April 10, 2007,

The following material is submitted with this application:

e Completed application form
s Check in the amount of $300.00 for the development review fee = =~ =
e 6 copies of the report that provides the background information on this request

e Vicinity map of the subdivision and surrounding platted and approved lots
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Vicki Lucero
Colinas del Sol
October 6, 2016
Page 2 of 2

Since the recordation of the plat on October 23, 2007, Mr. McMillan has not sold one lot within
the subdivision, The majority of the potential buyers wish to keep horses on the property, since
the lot size easily accommodates limited equestrian uses. Given the .2 acre feet per lot per year
restriction it is extremely difficult to provide for the normal household use and 2-4 horses on the
lot.

Please schedule this request for consideration by the Board of County Commissioners at their
November 8, 2016 Commission meeting,

Sincerely

S Aot

James W Siebert

Xe: Russ McMillan

ColinasdelSol
reqwatmod
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Prepared By: 0
James W, Siebert & Assoc. N
October 6, 2016

REPORT ON CASE #S 06-5290 REQUEST INCREASE IN ANNUAL WATER USE
FROM .2 ACRE FEET TO .25 ACRE FEET

This report was prepared to provide the background information for the Board of County
Commissioners’ consideration. The documents in the appendix are: :

Summary of hydrology report prepared for Colinas del Sol Subdivision (Exhibit A)
Letter from OSE on subdivision review (Exhibit B)

Minutes of County Commission meeting when BCC acting on the subdivision request
(Exhibit C}

Reduction of recorded plat with water restriction (Exhibit D)
Recorded water restriction covenants (Exhibit E)
Research of subdivisions 2006-2007 time frame with wells and approved water use
{(Exhibit F)

Eldorado Moratorium on Development using EAWSD Water Resource <
The County Commission imposed a moratorium on development in the Eldorado at Santa Fe
Subdivision that used the Eldorado Area Water and Sanitation District water. The exception to

this moratorium was the use of on-site wells and minimum 12.5 acre lots as provided by the quote
from the county ordinance provided below.

“No density adjustments beneath 12.5 acres per dwelling unit, the basic Basin Fringe
Hydrologic Zone Minimum Lot Size, will be considered and these approvals will be
contingent upon acceptable site specific hydrology reports, water use covenants and proper
well drilling and construction techniques which protect and optimize the source of supply.”

Hydrology for Subdivision

A hydrology report was prepared indicating sufficient ground water supply to satisfy a 100 year
requirement of 10 acre feet. The actual use for the 16 lots at .25 acre feet per year per lot limits
the total annual water use for the subdivision to 4 acre feet. The permitted water use at .25 acre
feet/year represents 40 percent of the ground water available to the subdivision (see Exhibit A).
The Office of the State Engineer accepted the findings of the hydrology report (see Exhibit B).

Three wells were installed as shared wells under a 72-12-1 well permit. A 30,000 gallon storage
tank was installed with a fire hydrant connected to the storage tank.

Vicki Lucero

MceMillanColinas

supportdoc ' {\I B (o



Vicki Lucero
Colinas del Sol
October 7, 2016
Page Two of Two

The Land Use staff had required a water restriction of .25 acre feet per lot since this was the
standard County Code restriction relative to water use in residential subdivisions. At the April 10,
2007 meeting of the Board of County Commissioners, County Commissioner Campos reduced the
annual water use from .25 acre feet to .2 acre feet. Commissioner Campos stated that he felt this
reasonable given that the developer was not using commercial water rights for the subdivision (see
Exhibit C for minutes of BCC meeting). It should be noted that shared domestic wells using 72-
12-1 permits were allowed by the County Land Development Code and by the Office of the State
Engineer.

A research of the County records for the years of 2006 and 2007 indicates that seven subdivisions
were approved utilizing 72-12-1 on-site wells. None of these subdivisions were restricted to
anything less than .25 acre feet per lot. The research sited here is found in Exhibit F.

Votes Taken by BCC for Approval of Colinas del Sol Final Plat .
There were three votes in favor of the approval of the final plat for Colinas del Sol

Chair Commissioner Vigil voted against the motion with the following statement: “T do agree with
the applicant that .25 is appropriate”, It is assumed that Commissioner Anaya voted against the
project for the same reason. Iwas the consultant for the subdivision and that was my recollection.

SEDC Water Well Allocations

The request to amend the BCC condition is in conformance with the Santa Fe County

Sustainable Land Development Code Chapter 7 section 7.13.11.1. Section 7.13.1 1.1 states
“Annual water use for domestic purposes for a single family residential dwelling shall not exceed
0.25 acre foot per year.

McMillanColinas
supportdoc

NR-7/




J/f -
i
X
S TATE OF NEW MEXI}ICO
OFFICE OF THE STATE ENGINEER
John R. D'Antonie, Jr., PE. Sania Fe BATAAN MEMORIAL BUILDING, RODM 102
State Enginesr SANTA FE, NM 87504-5102
: . (5.05) 8276120
Tuly 21, 2006 Fax: [505) B27-6682
Ms. Shelley Cobau
Development Review Specialist IT CERTIFIED MATL
Santa Fe County RETURN RECEIPT
P.O. Box 276 REQUESTED
Santa Fe, NM -87504-5102
Re: Colinas del Sol Subdivision Anticipated By Fax
Dear Ms. Cobau:
The Water Use & Conservation/Subdivision Review Bureau of the Office of the State
Engineer has reviewed the referenced subdivision proposal pursuant to the Santa Fe County o
Land Development Code, the New Mexico Subdivision Act and the OSE Rules and "
Regulatzons Govermng the Appropnatlon and Use of Ground Water In New Msxico. '
Based on the mformation prov1ded, thls ofﬁce has determine that the subdivider can furnish
water sufficient in quantity to fulfill the maximum annual water requirements of the
subdivision, mcludmg water for indoor and cutdoor domestic uses, and that the subdivider can
fulfill the proposals in his disclosure statement concerning water, excepting water quality.
Accordingly, a positive opinion is jssued.” ,
A staff memorandum providing specific comments is attached for your information. If you
have any guestions, please call Jerry Keller at 505-827-3845,
Since 71y,
(”
Vehlogetlle
Water Use & Conservation/Subdivision Review Bureau Chief
EHGL' Lt ST - . - T ' , e "““““”“*‘“"'—“"‘L—_’r
i at R _ . ) . e . s i¥
ce:  OSE Water Rights Division, Santa Fe Office ' JUL 25 20 - p
T !
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. MEMORANDUM
New Mexico Office of the State Engineer
Water Use and Conservation Burean

DATE: July 20, 2006
TO: John Longworth, P.E., Water Use and Conservation Bureau Chicf

ce: Mara Smith, Water Resource Master
FROM: Jerry Keller, Senior Water Resource Specialist ﬂ/&f
SUBJECT: Colinas Del Sol Subdivision, Santa Fe County

SUMMARY
On June 23, 2006, the Office of the State Engineer (OSE}) received a request to review the

subdivision proposal for Colinas Del Sol, a Type Three subdivision. The proposal is a request to
subdivide 202.006 acres into 16 residential lots, with sizes ranging between 12.50 acres and
13.695 acres. The property is located in Eldorado, south of Avenida Eldorado, north of Spur
Ranch Road, and west of Camino de Compadres within projected Sections 23, 24, and 25,
Township 15 North, Range 9 East, NMPM, Cafiada de los Alamos Grant The proposed water
supply for the subdivision is three shared 72-12-1 domestic wells to be installed by the

developer.

The water supplfy' documents submitted to this office consist of a proposed water budget, .
Restrictive Covenants (Covenants), Disclosure Statement, and Geohydrologic Report (Report),

This proposal was reviewed pursuant to the Santa Fe County Land Development Code (Code),
the New Mexico Subdivision Act (Act), and the OSE Ruyles and Regulations Govemning the
Appropriation and Use of Ground Water In New Mexico. Based on the information provided, the
water supply proposal substantially complies with the requirements of the Code and the Act.
Accordingly, a positive opinion should be issuzd.

WATER DEMAND ANALYSIS AND WATER CONSERVATION

The maximum annnal water requirements of the subdivision ig specified under Item No. 17 of
the Disclosure Statement as 0.25 acre-feet per lot (a total of 4.0 acre-feet for the subdivision),

A detailed water demand analysis assuming 2.6 persons per dwelling at 65 gallons per capita per
day, 200 square feet of Buffalo grass or similar drought tolerant grass, 500 square feet of
horticultural area and 800 square feet of frees, and one horse, is included in the proposal. The
water budget assumes that all homes will use evaporative coolers and water softeners, However,
Article 18, Section 18.10 of the Covenants prohibits Evaporative coolers. The water budget does
not include an estimated annual demand for the evaporative coolers. Therefore, the prohibition
o1 evaporative coolers within the covenants should be enforced.

‘The provisions of the Covenants and other restrictions are summarized under Ttermn No. 17 of the
Disclosurs Statement. The conservation measures are in substantial compliance with Section
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Colinas Del Sol Subdivision
July 20, 2006
Page 2 of 2

6.6.2¢ of the Code. Strict enforcement of the water use restrictions should ensure that the water
budget is not exceeded.

WATER AVAILABILITY ASSESSMENT
The proposed water supply for the subdivision is shared 72-12-1 domestic wells. The dcveloper

will construct three wells and the distribution system to serve the 16 lots within the subdivision.
The maximum number of lots to be served by a single well ig six. Articls 18, Section 18.01 a, b,
and c lists the lots served by each well. The shared well agreement is contained in Section 18.01
through 18.09 of the Covenants. Section 18.09 states that there shall be no more that three shared
wells within the subdivision. Section 18,10 states that no additional individual domestic wells
may be drilled on any lot, Item No. 17 of the Disclosure Statement specifies that no more that

four wells will be drilled within the subdivision.

The developer submitted a Geohydrologic Report (Report) for the proposed subdivision in
accordance with Sections 6.4.5, 6.4.2, and Table 7.4 of the Regulations, The developer drilled
one on-site test well (RG-86983). The Report includes the on-site and 15 off-site well logs,
drawdown and recovery well test data, geologic cross-sections, water level contours, water
availability calculations, and results of 100-year schedule of effects model.

The total annual water demand in the Report is 10 acre-fest based on a development of 40 lots of
5 acres each and 0.25 acre-feet per lot. The demand for subdivision proposal is 4.0 acre-fest
based on 16 lots of 12.5 acres to 13.695 acres. All calculations and analytical modeling are based
on 10 acre-feet per annum. This discrepancy may result in significantly over estimating the
future drawdown of the subdivision wells and effects on nearby existing wells.

The subdivider will provide all wells within the subdivision, The depth of wells, and estimated
vield are shown under Ttem No. 19 of the Disclosure Statement. The minimum Jot size
calculation includes calculations for various lot sizes, including calculations that indicate 0.725
acre-feet is available to serve a 12.5-acre lot, Based on the overall conclusions in the Report,
there is sufficient groundwater in storage beneath the subdivision to support the proposed 16-lot
development. The report concludes that there is adequate water available for 100 years, and that
the effects of pumping within the Colinas Del Sol Subdivision on nearby wslls will be miinor.
This office concurs with these conclusions,

TN
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Subdivisions 2006-2007

1.

2

January 10, 2006
BZ Case #S 04-4583 Tesuque Villas Residential Subdivision
40 ac f,

April 11, 2006
CDRC Case #S 05-5380 Green Ranch
25ac ft

October 10, 2006
EZ Case #S 06-4310 Ponderado subdivision
25 ac f1,

January 9, 2007
CDRC Case # V 06-5570 Freedance LLC, Chffs at Padre Springs Subdivision
25 ac i,
January 9, 2007
EZ Case #8 02-4494 La Cordilleras Subdivision. Phase IIT
.25 ac ft.

February 13, 2007
EZ Case #8 06-4200Mattson Subdivision
35 ac ft

June 13, 2006
EZ Cuse #8 06-4060 CP Santa Fe Investments, Sundance Ridge Subdivision
25ac fi.

Colinas Del Sol
Subwatresearch
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Vieki Lucero
102 Grant Avenue
Santa Fe, NM 87504

Dear Ms, Lucero,

This leiter authorizes James W, Siebert & Associates, Inc., to submit documentation and atiand
public hearings as it relates to the Colinas del Sof Subdivision.

. - |
<8 McMillan
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REAL ESATE CONIRACT Iyt e iy Byt st e B o 2 |
w, t - Yeargniitng 1 ot dhciawrys of for lameaclionr erame fiom i Act o
- . N '\ -
o
: & -
THS CONTRACT (S MADE @ fplete iy 30¢h, Dec: 200%y ot boween | (N N
__les Mg L Parrpershie, a KM Genaral Pertdership _ [
hareinaltor caficd the "Seller’, end __ Hlgh Deserf Partnecdhip, TLE whase tn}
agdracs bs 9 nﬁm,u@nﬁ:g_mazmg heramaiier caled the “Furchiser”, Wheasver £
w maseuling pronoun 18 used, & shal oleo b coneidarad a8 referfng lo the femnle gerder ard plurdl b
pranwuns, whizhavar 15 preper,
1, SALE; Tho Selter, K1 conaideralion of e peomlses and agredmanis herein madg by e Purchasar, [
ayraes 1o sell and oanvey to the Purchaser lie [olowlng described real estels, herelnalivs callad the Fropetty, Et i
i the Gounly of Sanis Fe snd Slate of Naw Meleo; ﬁf‘z
e
3
Gep Exlibif A ateoched hereto and made a part hereof, i-r:jj
5
S
Subjact ta: Rescrvatlons, restriationg and essoments and LAXGS for 3
2006 ard pubgequant veATE. hEnL ESTATE CORTREC Lt
] A r
e e, ﬁgféfogé?‘ ;2;;; : pAGEST 18 N
S BLER, ) ex 3
:\‘\ﬁ_.-', it "u,' Hereby Cerbily Yhat Thin Instrumsnt Lsw Filed Tor (o
£uy " % scocd Bn Tha BATH Day Df Deccaber, A.D., 2085 8t §1:33 -EJ
s h gt e Duly Recorded az Inetrument ¥ J41M1JE -
= l’ P fé”_‘: f The FRacords O Santa Fu Coupily | )
T g z d
; M&%Mﬁs : Yibrexd iy Hand find Sealt of Difice r.g
“ ey SERTERA G t * Valdrle Esplroxs 7
’e,?rﬁ' cduﬁﬁ‘?‘.\“ Lty LM .._____Ceu_ht'!_ﬁl:rk, Santa Fy, N W

T
‘The Sefior agrees, upen cmlmlalion of fl terma and sonditions of (S conlract by the Purahmsar, that the

Prurchasor shel then recelve the Wananly Desd and retated documeila placad I escrow with #his Contract.

ove-tiescribad Property and (o pay
= Doliary
. down

wdhth cash
ins balande of

2. PRIGE AND PAYMENT! The Purchaser agroes
Sclior fheeofor dhe  lolE0 Bum ymi——

o I o

Subjozk ta: Rasarvaticns fostrictians and pasemants of rocord and 1o fot e yoar 2008 and theroaRer.

The paymanl os abovs provided shall ba peld 1o the eacrow agent and continye untll e entire unpeid
Brlasica ol the purchoto prica {wxcuslive of any prior ien er etilgsbian belng sssumed) plus any ecerued
interest duo to tho salior s fully puld, Sald unpald belsace shap bear Intorest al tha reia of

percontim [__.,__..%) PEr &iiam from tha sffeciive dale .

APPLICATION OF PAYMENTS: Chack and kil enly e of lie foliowing twa parographs,

(g} Payinents, excopling prapaymenis, shall Le applled lo requiaty schadulsd Instzlimants i the

initlgls order ki which Who Bamd were due ond shed ha crodiled Bs {ough lhe PHRSNS were (ade ont
their ruspaciive dua fia!au. :

L

{t) Payments shall be applied as of tha dgia ofocelpt by Escrow Agent Tiest Lo accrued Interesl then

fittels tr priinclpal brtnics of lhis Confract,

g et
—_
ey

FAR M Tha tom WEA prigseed by N Rantleds Landclaliow # Tew Wiicy (AHM), PN mebw mer warcfuidy of T gt
slistiivemay pr vahAy 2l Iy foom, Yo rmibl FonasAl your Ay with et Lo the pICRYERERS B iRy &) py
prapaued wh o [ Torm, RAIH declstms oy Wity far st Emdiling it emy ol of (e Jocme

NB-1¢
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Al payrients sliall be assumed lo be regolar payaents, and nol pepeyments, unless olherwlse spesified
vy Purchaset n willing et Ine Ums of daftveriig such paymenls ta Escrow Agent. Unless olheryisa provided,
Purchasor may propey The urpald balancs in whelé or b pail at sny time. Any prepayment shalf be cadiisd
fisl to aoerued lnlesaat, then lo tha pringlpel blonca of tie Conlract exclusive of astumed fans or

~ T
D

obligations, Ihen lo assumed llens or obligalions 85 deseribed In [His parepraph, Metwithslandg any | £,

prapaymords, Purclraser shall Inake tha next reguierly scheduled peymonts, '

Should Pulchaser Tl {o make oy of tha paymants of porforn eny ofhor obligations requitod Jereunder, €

including the paymant of any aesumad sbligstion, snd If Sellars allomey mikes writien demand therelor | 5o

pursustt 10 Patagraph § below, the Porthgser shufl pay wihin the tima Bllowsd, the addilionst sum of 3¢ | -
, uloss alherwise staled, for Seflede atlomey's faos,

o Tallowing len(s} or vbAgation{s) s curehtly sulztanding on e Property: EU

Type of Lian or Oblgatkon Holdar 1.oah Numbar Recording Data: Book & | (%

' : Pags 63

Notie vf Record L

|39

w/e %9

b

£

IF ANY LIENIS) OR OBUGATION(S) IS/ARE CURRENTLY OUTSTANDING ON THE PROPERTY, CHECTK :

AND iNITIAL OMLY ONE OF THE FOLLOWING THREE PARAGRAPHS, ONLY THAT PARAGHAPH el

SUALL APPLY. e

(@) Purohoser mesumee and egroes fo pay (e shovementioned prior llen(s) or obligations & | °

Il Bovordarco whh Aok lrme, Purcheser shall make ia Inslaliment poyments on tha priof ien(s) | £

—_ or philgation{s), togeiher with inslalimen! paymenls on this Gonlract, Lo tha Escrow Agent nemd E_;

—_— Dolow, whe Wi remil the puyenls ko the porson of company to whom Ty are payabla, o

- Porcliser shol advise tho Escrow Agent of any changa n the arount of Y payment thia on any

— assumed obligation(s). Faire to make such payments 4l the tme requlred shall be a default
urider tis Conlael, Al such bme 2s fia unpeid balance of e puichnsa pricg dus the seller Is
fully pald, ihis Escrow sholl lorminats axd tha purchasar shall hereallar make the Instaficrent
psyments on eold prior fleiia) o obbgation(s) directly to the percons} or comhpery{ies) lo wiam
the od paryable. - . ) ’ T b

{h} Purchazer assumes g pgrees lo pey the shovs-nsntioned prior Ben(s) or ebligation(s) in
Wiiats acteedance wilh fia or thak (9ms, Purchases shall maka the instalimant paymenta on tha prier
Her{s} o cbligation(s) direclty 1o he person or company 1o whorm paysble. Foflure ko maka such
paymants al ke g roqulod shiak be 8 defaull under this Conlract

—_—
ey

——

(=) Purchassr dogs nol zssume of ogres 1o pay Mie shave deserbad Nenfs) or obfigalion(s). Al

Sritlals papnanls due on Buch Nents) or shiigallon(s) shall be remitad by the Escrow Agant t the person

* . or comgany lo Whein lhey are payabls ol of I poymiont medo by Purchasar. If the payments

dug, from Purghwser era insufficient to sallsfy Mo smounts tup lo ba mada on the alovy-

duscribed Ben(s) or obligalion(s), Scfler shall pay Fsprow Agent such addlilionsl Turds as are

L nocHssary & kodp such Honds) or obﬂﬁaﬂon {s) cirenl,  Upor paymant of Ihis Confrued I 1,
Selter ahall oblsin 8 relense of fie premises from Ihe Jeivjs] or ohiigallon(s} desied abve.

Shouid Purchuser [of Lo pay sy such nxlafimont paymuonls prior o e sarma becoming deliquent, Seflor
sy pay o sama for he prolection of the Propary snd iis imieret! thoeisln. Payment by Seller aball nol bo
deeniod & walver of Purchaser’s defeult, ond Hio aimoinl so paid by. Sefler shall be immodislely dua wnd
payably to Ssllar amd shall bear atsrost unid paki Bl the sams rofe =s providud in Paregraph 2 sbove.

3. PURCHASER TO PAY INSURARGE, TAXES AND PAYVING LIENS, AND SELLER'S RIGHTS:

(o} Inurenca. The Purchaser ogrees io keap the lnsrablo improvements wpon the Properly insured
ngeins! We hazerds coversd by M and oxlendad, coyarnge kisurnos, willl en insurance company
sallsfaclory to Seller, b 12 sum of not less han § ofs (vassut Tand) e benefl of e Puchaser end
Seller as {helr Inferesls may eppsar, and furnish @ vopy of e fgurance poliy or cortifivale of Inaurance
policy o Soller annudfy prior o explralion of existing insurance,

(5} Taxws, Usiceg otherwisa sialed herain, ho property taxes for the cutiard year have boen divided and
provaled hetween Beller and Purghasar s of the dsle of M3 Conlract, and the Purshaser iy respenalbio for
prid wil pay [ha taxes and easessments of avery kind herosRer bifled.

Purchaper wit have ‘he properly assessed for Lsxalion In Purchizer's nama, Upon requast By Selfer,
Fuschager wili tond copios of the pald tay recalpie sach year 1o Ballor,

{¢) Paving snd Other Imptovemant Liars aid S{ardhy Charges, Unloas olhareize slaled hesln, e
Purchaser sssumes gy paving andior ofer iaprovament Bon sndior slanedby charpes now asaessed agalast
the Proporty end agreca lo pay of instsiments of princips and infarast thereon (el horealler become due.

{d} Seller's Rights. Should the Pircheser faif Io pay Instranca pramiums, laies ) assssemanis,
paving Hens, mprovement llens or standby charges, of ether such metisis prior 1o ihe ssine betoming
defliquent, Sefler may pay tha same (it is hol obilgated to do o) for the protadlion of the Property and his
interest thareln. Paymend of such charges shafl nol be deamad ¥ ralver of any defalt of Purchaxdr lor fakire
o pay such diarges, aid such mounts es hava heon 50 prid shall ba kmimedisloly due and payabla 1o Saffer,
cnd rhafl bogt inferest st paid al lhe sama raie a3 provided In Paragraph 2 chove,

—
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4, PURCIASER'S RIGHT, SELLER'S RETENTION OF INTEREST:

Purchaser ahall ba entilod to t2ke porsession of lie proparly and refai possession unless and unit
Putclinrar's interests tmeer this Coritract hsh ba letinlnated by Soller as provided in Paregraph § below,
Legal lil's fo e Propely shull remain In Sefiar's nome unli iz Conlract hias baen fully performed Lpon e
parl of Furchaser and the Warraply Dagd delivared 46 spacified,

5, SELLER'S RIGHTS IF PURG HASER DEFAULTS:

{a) Detpuil Notlca, Tims is of liig essencs In this Gonlrecl, reeanling ihal ha pattles shall porfom telr
respeciive obligatiors wilhin dte fnies safed. If Purchater fells iz make any of D pryments required in
Paragraph 2, hezey, ol the bme gpecifled, o [ofls of relusss to mainlen insurence or 1o pay loxed,
assesyments or olher charpes agubsl the Propady, ef falls or relises lo fopay any sums atvanced by the
Safar undoe the provisions of Paragraph 3 above, fho Soffer may maks willsn demand upen (he Purchasw,
wilh such rotics ko speclly the defaukl end the tiralive aofion required, =t his addrets by fofows!

or gt such other addrass thal Puichaser may designele by a nolartzad stalsment doliverad lo the Esorow

igcnl, which chasro of pddress wil be effuetive on lhe soventh {7th) eatandar day afler revelpl by the Recrow
9, .

{b) Mannor of Glving Delauit Notice. Nalies In willing chall be ghen By caclified mied, raturn receipl

requested, addressed k the Purchoser &l e olfeciive adfdress for Puichasst at ovided in Paragraph 6(s},

¥ith 7 capy 1o Escrow Agend, Purtheser axpiassly acknowledges Mt notfes 16 him by mail, ki bie manner

shove spacied, i sulliclent for 2lt purposes, regerdiess of whether ho aclunlly receive such tiolics,

{¢) Purchassi'e Fallura fo Cura Defautt Results I Termination of Cenlract or Accaleration of
Enfire Unpald Balance.

i e Purdlicser fals of neglects To curs ny dalaull widinThaly (30) days pltar ihe dats Sallor's defuul
nalize te maled, hen lie Seller may, ot bis opllon efther deciare iha whole amount remaking unpaid lo be
e dre, = pracoed 1o anlorca payment of tho entie remsining snpeid balance, phiw ey conied Inferest,
tanetlier with rResonabia allanay's foes, or he may larminale Parchaset's rights | the Property énd relain 2 { ¢~
sums paid es Tiquidsled demages (b thal dale for e usa of I Propetly, snd =i righls of Purchaxet n the | ¢h
Propurly shall theroupen end, If tha final day for guring e defaud shaf ia¥ on & Salurday, Sunday, of poo- |
buskieas day ol o Eserow Agen, then he porlod for curlng the deloult shat axtend o the closa of burlness
on Wi nex! regutar business day of the Retrow Agenl.

Acceplanco by Escrow Agesd of any paymenl lsnderod shsk rol be deamed B walver by Salkr, or
edanslon of he time for oure, of any offrer defaull undor this Coniracl, b Iha ovent of terminalion, Purchaser
heraby woives eny gnd ol fights and cigkms For reimbursament or kmprovaments he may have medg upon (he
Properly. ) :

{tt) Affidavit of Uncored Delaull and Eleclion of Terminstion,

A recordsble sffiduvt made by Safler, Hls agenl, or Escrow Agenl, idenfityiny fie parlles, stalng the legal
dezerlplion of fye Propaly or Lhe recording dale of this Contrac? and sialing the data hat nolico was duy
given as pravided nbove, (hat the specifivd dafault hes not boan curad within tha timo allowed and thal ihe
Sellor |1t clected jo tonminale, and delivered Lo (he Esmow Agenl shall be cihssive proof for he Esttow
Agrent ul;:; any pubsequent Puichaser of racumbradess for vafue of sueh tncurad defaull and eleclion of
tarminallom

{o) Purclinser Bepomea Tengnt. Upon terminalion, Purchaser bes no contioulng rghl o passession. [
Purchinstr tomans I possession of he Properly afler Hiis Gonlract has been leminatod a5 shove provided,
Purchasor shall ten becoms a lenant ot wil, for u replat amounl equivatont lo e hstefiment paymeit
Hipralolors Teguiied oz monfidy payevents under dhis Conlract, whh the fist auch conisl paymenl dug
Wnmediately, ki advance, mid such fenancy being stibjedt lo taminalioh by efther prrty upon ity (30] dage
separato prior wiltlen slolion. Sefiar's sccuptance of such rental piymani(s) shall nol bo destmied 5 ANY Walver
of s ighits, nar shiok Al consliiute sy marser of estoppel. , :

(1} Legai Rightio Evict. IT, slter lerinefon of (v Gontract, rent ke net paid, forcible anlry md detainer
Erooemﬂngs e 3 Poliiion for a Wil of Reelitulion, & additton lo any other appropriata legal remadies, may

o ullizad by Hio Seler ¥ necassary lo oblai possazsion of the Propaity folluwing lom ination of thlz Conlract
aivd lormisnilon of Purchassr's voitinued tananey therastlor, K sudh procestings ofg fled, Purchaser shall bo
fahia for Seier's ressonable altomey's fess plus tha fegal cosle of sueh agtion, Upon ¥rs racording of the
Bpsclal Waranly Deod and the tertnalion of (i Oonlradh, ol tights, tablilics, upd rosponsiiities of fe
peilios harolo shak ba govarned by e Uniferm Owner-Rosident Ralaflens Acl and Ihe Saller shall hava 2f
Hghic avaliable 1o an Ouner of proparty under that Act in addition 1o &t olher feged righta,

g TIILE INSURANCE OR ABSTRAGT:

tinlses olferwise provided haretn, Seller Is delivering & Camiract Purchosar's Tile Insuranca Poilcy lo
Purchaset or Abslract of Tite la Eserow Agant el fie time is Conbiacl ls mads, showing merchentable (e 1o
lie Properly o8 of the date of this Contract, subjecl lo fhe matlers raforred to it this Conbact, and Selfer is ot
sbfigeted fo provida aisy othar of frther evidencs of e,

7. PURCHASER'S RIGHT TO SELL:

_ {A) Frst Provision: o

quchasar shiall b enilld Lo Ak, mastan, convey or gncutiber lis andrs lnlarastin This Cortract {bul ned
2 porfin frerenl) and the Propsrly to acy persen of enlily, horslnalter cilfed Assighee, and may rolain w
ssewlly iorest Uiereln, witholdt oblainhig the conasd or approvel of he Sefter, The Purchaser shall nol,
howsver, be ratensed from hia obligations hereunds; by any sush sala, esaignmsnl, convoyanca of
encumbrance. T [he tyant Purchassr dogs B8, Bssign, vonvey of encumber aaid intarast, lhen Purchaser,
his Assignee, or my subsequen! Assignae shall dofiver @ copy of such wriilen ssle, EFEgrment, comeyance
of epuuindiunce dooumonl 1 Fscrow Agerl

-~
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[REARIE s form wee geaphnd by e Nuetiers Apraciubian bi Hew Wacles (IANKL RAHM wake siranty of the tegal
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Such sale, ssgigmenl, cohveyanea or ercumbEncd documsri shall specty lhe addrese of the Assignae and
tpon 1egelpt of such docuinant by (he Eserow Agent, Seller shell only ba ranuired lo zend notice of dofadil fo
1t most receid Agsigase who hag given notica of sus &sla oF assigomant ond Mis address o the Eacqow
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XIL A. 10. BCC Case#S 06-5290 Colinas del Sol Subdivision. High Desert
Partnership LLC (Russ McMillan, President) Applicant, Jim
Siebert, Agent, Request Preliminary and Final Development
Plan and Plat Approval for a 16-Lot Residential Subdivision on
202.03 Acres. The Property is Located in Eldorado, South of
Avenida Eldorado on Spur Ranch Road, Within Section 25,
Township 15 North, Range 9 East (Commission District 5)

MS. COBAU: Thank you, Madam Chair. The applicant is requesting final
development plan and plat approval for a 16-lot residential subdivision on 202.03 acres.
The lot sizes range from 12.5 acres to 13.03 acres, with an average gross density of 12.5
acres per dwelling unit. The property is in the Basin Fringe Hydrologic Zone where the
minimum lot size is 12.5 acres per dwelling unit with a quarter acre-foot per year per lot
water restriction. This site is within the ece Area Water and Sanitation District service
area. '

The applicant is also requesting payment-in-lieu as an alternative means of
compliance with Ordinance 2006-2, Affordable housing, rather than providing three
affordable housing units on site. The applicant has addressed the criteria established by
Ordinance 2006-2 and is proposing payment of a fee-in-lieu amount of $393,100. Tn
response to concerns expressed by the Santa Fe Southern Railway, the applicant has
agreed to romit a sum of $84,708.81 — which is corrected from the staff report that you
have in front of you, based on a letter we reccived from Mr. Siebert’s office late last
week. The amount has been agreed to between the applicant and the Santa Fe Southern
Railway and the County had not received the correspondence. So that number is
corrected to $84,708.81.

This amount will cover construction costs associated with rebuilding the at-grade
rail crossing at Spur Ranch Road in order to reduce the current hazard to motorists and
train traffic at this location.

The application has been reviewed for the following: existing conditions, roads
and access, water, the Eldorado moratorium, fire protection, liquid and solid waste,
terrain management, archeology, signage and lighting, homeowners association
documentation, and affordable housing,

Staff’s recommendation is as follows In response to the applicant’s request to
provide a cash payment in licu of construction affordable housing units, staff refers to
Section 16.A.2 of Ordinance 2006-02; which states that a project may altematively meet all
or a portion of its obligation to provide Affordable Housing by: “making a cash payment
that is equal to or greater value than would have been required if the Project had been
constructed or created Affordable Units as provided in this Ordinance, applying the
methodology set forth in the Affordable Housing regulations™; and further states in Section
16.A.1. F: “that in deciding whether to accept a proposed alternative means of compliance
pursuant to Sections 16 A.2, or A.3, the County shall consider the following where
applicable. Now, I've addressed these conditions or these portions of the Affordable
Housing Ordinance in much the same manner as a variance request, so I'll read this into the
record:

1. Whether the proposed cash payment is equal to or greater than the cost of
constructing equivalent Affordable Units within the Project, applying the
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methodology set forth in the Affordable Housing Regulations;
1. The applicant states “the formula for the payment was provided by
the County Housing staff and it is assumed that the payment is
made in compliance with the provision of Ordinance 2006-02.
» The County Land Use Administrator concurs with the
: amount of payment identified by the applicant.
Whether a proposed cash payment or dedication of property creates a substantial
surplus of funds within the dedicated housing fund or trust specific to that
purpose;
1. The applicant states “Very few if any cash payments have been
made to Santa Fe County. The money to be provided to the
Housing Fund would be available for underwriting a portion of the
cost of the monthly mortgage, allowing a person to own a home
with the assistance of a mortgage subsidy”.
¢ The County Land Use Administrator concurs that the fees
collected with this project can be utilized to provide
affordable housing in a more appropriate area that has
wider services available to residents, and can be utilized to
enable to Housing Authority to target specific locations
where higher density development can be integrated in
areas such as Village centers. \
. This section refers to appraised value of the property to be dedicated and is <
therefore not applicable in this case;
. Whether a cash payment or property provides a greater overail public benefit than
if the affordable units were constructed within the project or minor project that
would have otherwise provide for mixed income development;
i. The applicant states “The payment of a fee in-licu-of for this
Minor Project allows for the affordable housing unit to be located
in closer proximity to a variety of urban services, including
grocery stores, employment, recreation and bus service. The
commute to Santa Fe requires a car and all the costs associated
with the maintenance and insurance for the vehicle and the gas to
commute the approximate 30 miles to and from Santa Fe,”
¢ The County Land Use Administrator concurs that in this case,
due to the large size of the lots, distance of the project from
community services, and maintenance costs associated with
large lots on private roadways, septic systems, and shared
wells, that an alternate means of compliance is more
appropriate than constructing three affordable units at this
location. In addition, it is important to note that a Code
compliant four-lot subdivision can be created at this location
administratively, precluding compliance with the Affordable
Housing Ordinance and Subdivision criteria in the Code. The _
four lots could subsequently be divided by family transfer, (
ultimately resulting in the same density without the benefit of
the infrastructure included in this proposal.
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Staff’s position is that the Colinas del Sol subdivision is in accordance with
Article TII, IV and VII of the Land Use Code for Final Development Plan and Plat
submittals, Staff recommends acceptance of the payment of $393,100.00 as an alternative
means of compliance with Ordinance 2006-14 (Affordable Housing), and recommends
approval of the application for Preliminary and Final Development Plan and Plat for 5 16-
lot subdivision on 202.03-acres based on the following conditions.

Madam Cheair, I need to revise condition #3. The amount in condition #3 should
be corrected to $84,708.81. And I need to add a new condition 16, as the applicant has
requested some clarification. Condition 16 would read as follows:

16.  The applicant shall construct Avenida de los Compadres from Spur Ranch
Road to the northerly property line to Courity standards for & local sub-
collector.

And Madam Chair, with those corrections, may I add the remaining conditions to the

record?

[The conditions are as follows:]
1. Compliance with applicable review comments from the following;
a) State Engineer
b) State Environment Department
¢) State Department of Transportation
d) County Hydrologist
e) County Fire Marshal
f) County Public Works
g) County Housing Administrator
h) Santa Fe-Pojoaque Soil and Water Conservation District
i) County Technical Review
J) State Historic Preservation Division
2. Approval by the BCC of the payment of a fee of $393,100.00 to provide an
- altenative means of compliance with affordable housing criteria. Payment of the
$393,100.00 fee in-lieu must be made prior to or concurrent with Final Plat '
recordation.
3= Payment of $58,000 $84,708.81 to the Santa Fe Southemn Railway for
improvements to the Spur Ranch Road crossing, along with-a reimbursement
agreemeont-to-besigned by-Santa Lo County, Sant :
Desert LLC

Desert —rais-agreement shall bereferenced on th
Offiee-of the-County Clerk, [Modified at motion. ]

4. The developer’s engineer must establish the base flood elevation in the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), Zone A Special Flood Hazard Area
(SFHA), and this information along with a minimum finished floor elevation for
lots adjacent to the floodplain shall be included on the Final Plat per 44CFR
Subsection 60.3, Ordinance 1988-1, and Article VII, Section 1.2.3. No structures
(including fences) or placement of fill will he permitted in the FEMA floodplain
without prior analysis to determine the effects of such obstructions on the
computed water surface elevation, flow velocity, and conveyarce cap acity of the
floodplain. Residential structures must be setback 25° from the floodplain as
established by the engineer, and this sethack must be clearly depicted on the Final
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Plat. Water supply systers shzll be designed to minimize infiltration of flood
waters,

5. Each lot owner must comply with County water harvesting requirements set forth
in Ordinance 2003-6, ‘

6. The applicant shall submit a cost estimate and financial surety for the completion
of required improvements as approved by staff prior to Final Plat recordation.

7. A liquid waste permit must be obtained from the Environment Department for the
proposed septic systems prior to issuance of building permits.

8. Road names and rural addressing must be approved by the County prior to
recording the Final Plat.

9. Water use on this property will be restricted to 0.25- .20 acre-foot per year per lot,
Water restrictive covenants must be recorded with the Final Plat. A water meter
must be installed for each lot and annual readings must be submitted to the County
Hydrologist by January 31* of each year. [Modified at motion,]

10. The Subdivision Restrictive Covenants, Subdivision Disclosure Statement, and
Shared Well Agreements must be recorded with the final plat.

11. All archeological sites, drainage courses, trails, utility easements, stormwater
management facilities, and well sites must be placed within easements and
recorded on the Final Plat.

12. No further division of this land will be allowed; this shall be noted on the Final
Plat and in the Subdivision Disclosure Statement.

13. Solid waste fees in the amount of $624.16 shall be paid prior to recording the Final
Plat, '

14. Wells shall be tested for water quality, water quality tests shall be submitted to the
County Hydrologist and water treatment systems installed at the well head if water
quality is outside acceptable standards. This shall be noted on the Final Plat.

15. All redline comments must be addressed, and original redlines must be returned.

T

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you. Are there any questions for staff? Commissioner
Sullivan, please.

COMMISSIONER SULLIVAN: Starting off with condition 16, what are the
standards for 2 local sub-collector? What are they? ,

MS. COBAU: Local sub-coltector is for 31 to 60 lots, 301 to 660 trips per
day. It’s much the same as 2 place lane or cul-de-sac. It has to have two driving lanes,
The minimum right-of-way is 50 feet. The design speed is 25 miles per hour. The
maximum slope is 11 percent, and it has to have a 6” minimum aggregate basecourse, It
differs from the local lane place or cul-de-sac in that the design speed of the local lane
place or cul-de-sac would be 10 miles per hour, ) o

COMMISSIONER SULLIVAN: And how many vehicles per day traffic?

MS. COBAU: This is 16 lots and this Appendix SA of the County Code is
based on an assumption of ten trips per day per lot. So this subdivision of 16 lots would
generate 160 trips per day, which would just require a place lane or a cul-de-sac.
However, in the Spur Ranch Road area there are other lots that we’d be taking access to
Avenida de los Compadres in the future, which is why I wanted to increase it to local (
sub-collector standards and have that additional design speed for the future.

There’s also other criteria, Commissioner Sullivan. A local sub-collector has to
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comply with AASHTO criteria and a number of other conditions that a local lane place or -
cul-de-sac does not have to comply with,

COMMISSIONER SULLIVAN: Okay, I could express one concern and
we could discuss it later about only six inches of basecourse on a road like that that’s
becoming a main thoroughfare. We can talk about that later. The other question that L had
is in the staff report, about the Santa Fe Southern Railway crossing, which of course
before development occurred did not need to be as safe as it needs to be now. It says the
applicant has agreed to remit a sum, which is now $84,708.81, to the Santa Fe Southern
Railway to cover the construction costs associated with rebuilding the at-grade rail
crossing at Spur Ranch Road. But then in the conditions it says that they’re going to
make this payment along with a reimbursement agreement signed by Santa Fe County.
Why should Santa Fe County reimburse a private developer for an improvement that’s
necessitated by virtue of constructing a for-profit development and then the second part
of that question would be what is this reimbursement agresment and how does that work?

‘MS. COBAU: mc, Commissioner Sullivan, I agree that that condition is
poorly written and I apologize. That reimbursement agreement is so that the applicant can
fry to reclaim some of the costs associated with upgrading that crossing from future
people who want to subdivide in that area, not from Santa Fe County. Santa Fe County
would not be participating in any of the costs associated with upgrading the crossing. The
crossing became an issue because the Santa Fe Southern Railway has said it’s a ranch
crossing and doesn’t meet the criteria or the trip traffic that’s currenily using it. In fact
they’ve threatened to close the crossing, which would cut off access o approximately 80
residents out in that area on Spur Ranch Road. So the applicant has agreed to-upgrade
that rail crossing in order to alleviate that condition that would be experienced by road
development and also by other property owners and developments in the area as a
condition. '

Because we weren’t going to allow additional density in the area that didn’t have
adequate emergency access. :

COMMISSIONER SULLIVAN: Does this then place Santa Fe County in
the position of being the policeman to collect these payments from future developers?
What’s the purpose of this agreement being signed by Santa Fe County?

MS. COBAU: I think, Commissioner Sullivan, that we should strike — |
think that the condition should be revised to say payment of $84,708.81 to the Santa Fe
Southern Railway for improvements to the Spur Ranch Road crossing. Period. And strike
the remainder of that condition,

COMMISSIONER SULLIVAN: I would understand that better. Thank
you. -

MS. COBAU: And again 1 apologize for the unclarity there,
COMMISSIONER SULLIVAN: We’ll see if the applicant’s in agreement
with that. And then prior to hearing the applicant, the only other thing that caught my eye
was that on the payment in lieu of fee — and I think we’ve discussed this before. We
already have several million dollars in our affordable housing funding and we haven’t
figured out what to do with it yet. So T think we have a lot of money in the fund. And it
says that the applicant states that the payment in lieu of fee allows for affordable housing
to be located in closer proximity to a variety of urban services, including grocery stores.
And it goes on to say a commute to Santa Fe requires a car, and that’s a good
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observation, and all the costs associated with maintenance and insurance for the vehicle,

And I would just remind the applicant and others who perhaps haven’t been
through the area later that there is a grocery store at the Agora Center, fairly large one
and not too far at all from this particular development. I think we’ve talked about this
before, of saying we should have all the affordable housing in Agua Fria because that’s
where the services are and they’re close to work and those kinds of things, and I think
we’ve discussed at some length some other projects about the fact that our idea is that we
want to discuss affordable housing in a variety of venues, not just downtown Santa Fe,

I think that these are fairly spurious arguments and ones that the Commission has
rejected on past projects. So I wanted to point that out as we get into the discussion.
Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAIR VIGIL: Any further questions? Seeing none, is the applicant here,
Mr. Siebert, are you in agreement with everything that’s been presented thus far? Do you
have any comments?

[Duly sworn, Jim Siebert testified as follows:]

JIM SIEBERT: My name is Jim Siebert. My address is 915 Mercer, Santa
Fe. Let me just begin by saying, yes, we arc in agreement with conditions as stated by
staff and as amended tonight. The thing that I’d like to point out fo the Commission is
that when you developed the affordable housing program the idea was that in essence you
end up giving up your lots, you devalue any of those lots that are affordable housing,
basically, there’s no value to those lots from the developer’s standpoint.

In this particular case, and I think you can make projects work if you have 2.5-
acre lots and especially if you have 2.5-acre lots similar to the project that’s coming up
tonight where you get density bonus. You get the ability to cluster those unit. In this case,
the only option that the developer has is a 12.5-acre lot. Period. And I think there’s a
great deal of difference when you talk about giving up the value of a 2.5-acre lot which in
Eldorado may range from $100,000 to $150,000, for a 12.5-acre lot, that goes from
$200,000 to $300,000. What you’re going to see is that it’s going to be — unless you own
the land free and clear, you just can’t make these projects work.

In addition, what’s happening is Russ McMillan, who’s the developer, has agreed
to do the improvements to the railroad crossing, That’s an additional $84,000. In
addition, he has agreed to go from a lesser standard on the roadway, really a place and a
cul-de-sac standard, fo a local road standard and pay the additional cost of doing that,
even though he’s not obliged to do that under the Code. All these things make the project
marginal at best.

In terms of the $383,000, that’s a number that was derived with the cooperation of
the affordable housing staff and we fee! that that is a reasonable number. Tt’s my
understanding that in terms of the actual money in the affordable housing program that
that money would still be well received to do a variety of thing, It’s my understanding
some of the uses they would put that money to is purchase of land for affordable housing,
underwrite the cost of mortgages to assist the homeowners in purchasing homes, adding
energy efficiency materials and appliances to homes that are affordable, build and
construct affordable homes in conjunction with the County Housing or local housing
trusts, leverage funds for financing of infrastructure for affordable housing projects. (

It seems to me that you could more than mulitiply what advantage you would have o
that money to accomplish a great deal of affordable housing. The issue of where this

AN

NB-2¢



project is, there is a grocery store in Eldorado, approximately eight miles from that
grocery store, It’s not like you would go from your house and walk down and get your
groceries. You're just not going to do that. You're going to have to get in a car and drive
down to the grocery store and drive back a total of 16 miles in order to do that.

We think what’s been offered here is a reasonable solution and we certainly hope
that you would consider this favorably. Russ McMillan who is the managing member for
High Desert Partnership is here and he would like to say a few words on the housing
issue. Thank you,

CHAIR VIGIL: Any questions for Mr. Siebert? Okay. Commissioner
Campos.

COMMISSIONER CAMPOS: You don’t have any water rights, right?

MR. SIEBERT: No, we would be on domestic wells, 72-12-1 wells.

COMMISSIONER CAMPOS: [inaudible]

MR. SIEBERT: Well, it would be whatever — .25 times 16, so I guess it
would be four acre feet.

COMMISSIONER CAMPOS: And you’re asking for .25 acre-feet per
DU.

MR. SIEBERT: Correct. Actually, when we began this process we did a
geohydrologic evaluation and it indicated, based on the hydrology study, it could support
twice the density for the 100-year water supply of what’s being proposed. -

COMMISSIONER CAMPOS: But you're using free water, or somebody
else’s water, not paying for it, and asking for .25 when you could probably do as well
with .2 as we’ve required of other subdivisions,

MR. SIEBERT: Commissioner, as they say, there’s no free lunch and this
one isn’t either. ,

COMMISSIONER CAMPOS: This is a free lunch for you. Youdon't.
have water rights. You haven’t bought water rights,

MR. SIEBERT: You still have to drill the wells. You have to build the
water distribution system. ' ' '

COMMISSIONER CAMPOS: I think it is a free luneh, and you’re asking
- for .25 instead of something more reasonable, Maybe .2 is what you actually need.

MR. SIEBERT: I'm going to let you discuss that with Russ McMillan
when he deals with the affordable housing.

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you. Mr. McMillan, would you please state your
name and address for the record and be sworn in. '

[Duly sworn, Russell McMillan testified as follows:]

RUSSELL MCMILLAN: Russell McMillan, 9 Balsa Drive, Santa Fe.
Boy, where to start with this, I’m not sure, I guess I'll start with the original plan. I’ve
been at this for a year and six months. Trying to get this thing together. We could have
done four lots, four 50s, sold them, got out. It didn’t serve me any purpose. It didn’t
really work very well. The County didn’t win. Low-cost housing didn’t win. So basically,
after a while, between the County and I, we came up with this other solution that maybe I
could come in, pay my share,

The reason that the lots don’t work is they’re too big. Twelve and a half acres, to
put a house on there for low-cost housing just does not work. It’s not feasible. I feel it’s
unreasonable to put low-cost housing out there but that's me speaking, so'1 called the
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Albuquerque low-cost housing authority. They thought it was unreasonable io puf low-
cost housing 30 miles outside of a mefropolitan area. It didn’t make sense. And then they
gave me the regional office in Texas and they’ve never heard of putting low-cost housing
30 miles outside of a town.

Now, yes, I agree with Commissioner Sullivan. There’s a grocery store, but it’s
also way more expensive than the grocery stores in town. That’s one thing. Car expenses,
just taking simple litle things. Gas alone for fwo cars is about $280 a month. Just on their
gas, Then they’re going to be put into a subdivision that has a homeowners association
and those dues can go up at any time, and that puts them in another problem down the
road after they have a house.

So all of these things add up. It just doesn’t make sense to put them out there, I
don’t know what else to say. [ understand what Commissioner Campos is saying about
the water, however, I'm meeting County Code. I've done what I’'m supposed to do. I’ve
only got 16 lots. 'm allowed to drill the wells. I’ve proved water. I’ve done the
hydrology report. It’s .25, what all the other subdivisions out there have been approved
with, including mine in the past last year. I’'m only doing what I thought Code is and
what I’'m allowed to have and that’s why it’s there.

And as far as a free lunch, I dor’t think it’s a free lunch. By Code I don’t need to
buy water rights. So I'm not sure where that’s coming from. If I could do water rights and
split my land smaller, I’d be glad to do it. And I'd also be glad to do the low-cost housing
out there if that’s what seems reasonable, if I could subdivide my land. But I'm stuck at
12.5-acre tracts. And I will say that when this Commission approved the low-cost
housing a year and some months ago, somsone on the Commission, and it’s in the
minutes; you can look it up —brought up what are we going to do about low-cost housing
in Eldorado in a moratorium? And the answer was we’re going to have to deal with that
when we get to it. Well, we’re here and I’m stuck in the middle of it. And I’'m only trying
to find a solution so everybody wins.

[ don’t think I win putting up $400,000 and another $84,000 to fix the railroad for
160 people, but I'm willing to do it because at this point I need to get out of this land and
move forward. And that’s all I have to say. I"ll take questions from there.

CHAIR VIGIL: Questions? No questions. Thank you, Mr. McMillan. This
is a public hearing. Is there anyone out there who would like to address the Commission?
Please come forward. Seeing that no one has come forward, I’l} close the public hearing.
What is the Commission’s wishes on this? Further questions, comments?

COMMISSIONER SULLIVAN: Madamn Chair.

CHAIR VIGIL: Commissioner Sullivan.

COMMISSIONER SULLIVAN: Let me just ask staff a question about the
affordable housing. This was categorized as a minor project or a major project?.

MS. COBAU: Madam Chair, Commissioner Sullivan, it’s classified per
the ordinance as a minor project.

COMMISSIONER SULLIVAN: Okay. A minor project is not eligible for
a water rights transfer waiver or a water allocation or density bonus. It may reduce the lot
area for each affordably priced housing unit to the minimum presented by applicable
regulations of the New Mexico Environmental Department.

MS. COBAU: Minimum lot size for the NMED is an acre. I think that’s

what they’re getting at, right?

N
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COMMISSIONER SULLIVAN: Yes. So, if I'm reading that correctly,
and affordable housing were to go forward, even though there’s a restriction and this
property is still under the old moratorium ordinance; it’s not under the new moratorium
ordinance or it’s not under the rescinder ordinance or whatever may come in the future,
which is 12.5 acres, unless they hook into the water system, the Eldorado system, which
they’re not doing. Would this Affordable Housing Ordinance then allow them to reduce
the affordable housing lots to one acre?

Cs: Madam Chair, Commissioner Sullivan, as you stated, they can’t go
smaller than 12.5 acres because they are in the moratoriom area which is why they came
forward with a 12.5-acre proposal. Duncan Sill, the affordable housing administrator is
here and I think that questions of that nature could be directed to Duncan. I believe it
would. However, we do have community water system and community sewer system
requirements also that would affect this project where if we were to go with lots that were
smaller than 2.5 acres then per the table that I’ve included as an exhibit — Commissioner
Sullivan, T think that would them into the requitement for community water and
community sewer system.

COMMISSIONER SULLIVAN: Okay, so assuming that — let’s just
assume that there were no moratorium but we have our current ordinances in place, they
could go, not down to an acre, but they could go down to 2.5 acres.

MS. COBAU: That’s correct. If they could prove a 100-year water supply
[inaudible] the density could go down,

COMMISSIONER SULLIVAN: He said they already have a geo-hydro.
So there’s an alternative. And I’'m just looking forward to, in the discussion this evening
there seemed to be at least this evening some interest in rescinding the moratorium
ordinance. I don’t know whether that will happen or not, but I'm just understanding that
12.5-acre lots don’t often make a feasible project for affordable housing, but I think there
are other options here and what I’'m hearing is that it would be 2.5 acres,

MS. COBAU: They could proceed with 2.5-acre Jofs for the Eldorado
moratorium. However, they would have to transfer water tights and connect up to the
EDU as Rancho San Lucas did on Spur Ranch Road, which was approved by this
Commission maybe six, eight months ago. That water rights transfer takes a great deal of
time and I believe that Maryann Stickler worked on that for four or five years before she
brought her subdivision forward. So this applicant and his agent have indicated to me that
this is their ultimate proposal, that they want to come forward now because as he said,
he’s worked with County staff for about a year and a half.

He came forward in August with an application for this subdivision and the
affordable housing criteria, at that time he felt it was a stumbling block and he was going
to proceed with a land division into the four 50-acre lots, He started with the
administrative approval process of that four-lot subdivision and made the decision to
come forward with the proposal that is before you today.

COMMISSIONER SULLIVAN: Yes. This is a lot quicker way to go, get
the lots sold and get out and as he indicated, to get on, but my question only pertained,
not to the entire subdivision but just to the affordable lot, and maybe I should clarify that.
Would he be able, without connecting into a public water system, to have a 2.5-acre or
slightly over 2.5-acre affordable housing lot, assuming there were no moratorium?

MS. COBAU: As long as the gross density was maintained, [ believe he
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could cluster them and have smaller lots. We have unfortunately, today the moratorium
which says the minimum lot size is 12.5 acres.

COMMISSIONER SULLIVAN: Yes, Understand, but assuming that in 30
days that may go away. I'm looking at other options here, just to answer the question that
the only option I have is to build affordable housing on 12.5 acres and I see other options
here that you could build the affordable housing on 2.5 acres. Now the Commission may
not think that’s a goed idea and I respect that, but I’m just indicating that the ordinance
does allow some flexibility in that regard.

CHAIR VIGIL: Further questions. Commissioner Campos.

COMMISSIONER CAMPOS: Madam Chair, just a thought. A couple of
thoughts. One is that the County should take the money for the affordable housing
[inaudible]. Two, I think paragraph 9 should be amended as far as acre-feet per DU from

.25 to .2. Otherwise, I think we should approve the project.

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: As amended?

COI\/B\/HSSIONER CAMPOS: As amended.

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: With all conditions?

COMMISSIONER CAMPOS: With all conditions.

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Second.

CHAIR VIGIL: Are you making a motion with that, Commissioner
Campos? ‘

COMMISSIONER CAMPOS: Yes.

CHAIR VIGIL: And there’s a second. Okay. So the only thing that’s been
amended here is item 3, with the acourate amount of $34,708. Item 9, requiring .2, then
addition 16,-the applicant shall construct Avenida de los Compadres, all of that. But we
would receive a payment in lieu of. Is that your understanding of the amendments? Okay.
There’s a motion and a second with amendments, Further discussion? Commissioner

Anaya.

TN

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: I wasn’t clear on the amendment.

CHAIR VIGIL: Which one? There are actually four. On the conditions of
approval, look at item 3. Instead of $50,000, that amount has been changed to
$84,708.81.

MS. COBAU: Madam Chair, that condition has also been amended to end
at the word crossing. The rest will be stricken.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: So you're changing $50,000 to $80 — what?

CHAIR VIGIL: $84,708.81. And the remainder, that particular
emendment also, afier the word crossing, that ends that condition. Then we’re also
looking at changing condition number 9 where water use on this property will be
restricted to .20. That’s item 9. The other amendment is an additional condition,
condition number 16 will be included where the applicant shall construct Avenida de los
Compadres, etc. as was stated in the record. Did you need further information on that,
Commissioner Anaya?

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: No.

CHAIR VIGIL: There’s a2 motion and a second. Any further discussion?

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair. (

CHAIR VIGIL: Commissioner Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: I feel that the applicant has done more than
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enough and I don’t agree with those changes,

CHAIR VIGIL: You don’t agree with the amendments. Mr, Siebert,

MR. SIEBERT: Madam Chair, I guess we would like to ask for some
consideration on the acre-feet as well from .25 10,2, These are large lots. The idea is that
some of these lots probably would have horses on them, That really precludes that option.
We would like consideration to keep the water use per lot at .25. Thank YOu.

CHAIR VIGIL: Mr. McMillan, did you want to address the Commission?

MR. MCMILLAN: Yes, just real quickly on the water. I understand where
Commissioner Campos - his feelings about it and somewhat T agree, but I have done a lot
to make this project work for everybody. And one of the things — this is one of the last
big pieces out there and I’'m willing to pin this thing in perpetuity for 12.5 acres which
eliminates another 40-some houses or however many I could have if the moratorium
changed. So I think in a sense my water - .25 in comparison to waiting and having
however many lots is a big difference. These are big lots, They’re horse properties and
.25 is not asking for very much I don’t believe.

CHAIR VIGIL:; Commissioner Campos, would you be wanting to respond
to the applicant’s request? '

COMMISSIONER CAMPOS: I think we have a motion and I’d like 1o
vote on it. I’m not — we’re going to have rooftop collection. There’s a lot of restriction on
the water usage. I think it’s ample water. ,

CHAIR VIGIL: There’s a motion and a second, Anything further?

The motion to approve BCC Case £8 06-5290 with the changes delineated
above, passed by 3-2 voice vote with Commissioners Anaya and Vigil voting against

the motion.

CHAIR VIGIL: I do agree with the applicant that .25 is appropriate,
Motion passes 3-2 with amendments, Thank you. We're going to take a five-minute
recess and then we’ll come back and listen to Gerard A. Martinez Variance.

[The Commission recessed from 9:00 to 9:10, and reconvened with Commissioner
Campos having left the meeting.]
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Jose Larranaga

From: Gerard A. Schoeppner

Sent: Friday, November 18, 2016 11.04 AM

To: Jose lLarranaga

Subject: , Ravised RE: Plat Amendment, Case # PCPA 16-5240 Colinas del Sol Review
Jose:

[ reviewed the package you sent regarding the above-referenced development. The plat amendment proposes to amend
the water restriction of 0.20 afy imposed by the BCC in 2007 to 0.25 afy for a 16 lot subdivision on 205 acres referenced
as the Colinas del Sol subdivision which is located in Sections 25 and 26 of Township 15N, Range 9E. The proposed
subdivision appears to be located in SDA-2 and within Eldorado Area Water and Sanitation District’'s (EAW&SD) service
area. Pursuant to Table 7-18 of the SLDC, the proposed subdivision is required to connect to a public water system
(EAWS&SD's) if it is within a public water system’s service area and within 400 feet of one of their existing waterlines.

The proposed subdivision is within EAW&SD's service area but it is unknown if it is within 400 feet of any of their
waterlines. The distance from the proposed subdivision to EAW&SD's waterline needs to be determined in order to
establish If It is required to connect to EAW&SD’s water system. If it is determined that it is not required to connect to
EAW&SD's water system, EAW&SD should be given the opportunity to comment on the proposed amendment to
increase water usage to 0.25 afy. '

A geohydrologic report dated April 3, 2006 was included as part of the original submittal in 2006 to support the proposal.
The water restriction of 0.20 acre-foot per lot was not based on the results of the geohydrologic report, but rather a
recommendation by the BCC based on a moratorium in place at the time. Under the most conservative scenario, the
geohydrofogic report supports 0.725 acre-foot of water per 12.5 acre lot which exceeds the value in the SLDC of 0.25
acre-foot and demonstrates an acceptable long-term drawdown over a 100 year period. However, the water quality repe”
listed four constituents that exceed Secondary Maximum Contaminant Levels; aluminum, sodium, pH, and turbidity whic,_
must be addressed.

In summary, the proposed amendment to restrict water use to 0.25 afy for the proposed subdivision is consistent with the
SLDC and is supported by the geohydrologic report. Therefore, the proposed amendment is acceptable as long as steps
are taken to address the water quality issues, -

If you have any questions, please contact me.
Jerry

Jerry Schoeppner, P.G.

Santa Fe County Utilities Division

Physical address: 424 Hwy 599 New Mexico Frontage Road, Santa Fe, NM, 87507,
Mailing address: P.O. Box 276, Santa Fe, NM 87504

Office: 505-892-9871

Mobile: 505-231-2346

Link to Google Map of our Office Location
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Ralph § & Jane D Summerfield
53 Cielo Tranquilo Ct
Santa Fe NM 87508

Rancho Vigjo Partnership
5 Bisbee Ct #101
Santa Fe NM 87508

Bonnie Marie Bray
8 Camino San Jorge
Lamy NM 87540

Aviva Baumann
135 Mgjor Lado
Santa Fe NM 87508

Randy L & Nadine M Blake
123 Mejor Lado
Santa Fe NM 87508

Jon Eric Olson & Nancy
Bartholomasei

2126 Candelero ST

Santa Fe NM 87505-5603

Joseph F & Alma M(Trustee) Miller

286 Riverbank RD
Lamy NM 87540

Eldon G & M Karen Reyer
HC75 BOX 270
Lamy NM 87540

Algjandro Rueda
PO BOX 4520
Santa Fe NM 87502

State of New Mexico
1100 St Francis Dr
Santa Fe NM 87501

Timothy & SondraWarmpler
16 Bnebro Rd
Santa Fe NM 87508

The Lee Abousleman Revocable
Trust

8301 Guadalupe TrIl NW

Los Ranchos NM 87114-1122

Aram & Sandra Farber
23 Palacio
Santa Fe NM 87508-2249

Esmael R Valdez
115 Mejor Lado
Santa Fe NM 87508

Sam’s Construction Inc
04 Old Galisteo Road
Santa Fe NM 87508

John Patrick & Sharon Daily
285 Spur Ranch Rd
Lamy NM 87540

Robbie L Ryse
287 B Spur Ranch RD
Lamy NM 875409705

Gorden G Lux
1109 Don Cubero Ave
Santa Fe NM 87505

George P Rieck & April W Laus
67 Cielo Trangquilo Ct
Santa Fe NM 87508

Andrea .H Vassallo
277 Spur Ranch Rd
Lamy NM 87540

Hal Arbit
3050 High Groove LN
Sonoma CA 95476

Jeffery C & Kathy Lewellin

5 CaguaRd
Santa Fe NM 87508

(race Perkins
PO BOX 22578
Santa Fe NM 87502

Ror & Nina Sebesta
PO BOX 22100
Santa Fe NM 87502

3

N
i
/

Jacqueline M Hollister & Thomas C

Payne :
287 A Spur Ranch RD
Lamy NM 87540

- Jeffry S Nelson & Stacey K Neff

230 Spur Ranch RD
Laty NM 87540
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Brenda Leonard
La Hacienda Loop
Santa Fe NM 87508

Kathryn Toll

65 Camino Acote
Santa Fe NM 87508
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ELDORADO AREA WATER & SANITATION DISTRICT
Z Morth Chamisa Drive, Suite A » Santa Fe, NM 87508 « (505) 4662411

lames Jenking, PResipenT
lohn Calzada, VicE PResIDENT
Stephen Holder, Secretany

_ _ David Burling, DirecTon
David Chakrof Casolyn M. Horne, DirgcTon
GENERAL WIANAGER ' ) Elfzabeth Roghalr, Treasuaer

November 21, 2016

Mr. Russe! McMillan
8 Balsa Prive
Santa Fe, NM 87508

Dear Mr. McMillan:

You have asked about EAWSD water service to a proposed 16-lot subdivision near the /
northwest corner of Spur Ranch Read and Avenida de Compadres. The proposed A
subdivision is within the EAWSD Water Service Area. A commitment by EAWSD to
provide water service to the subdivision will require the execution of a Development
Agreement with EAWSD. The Development Agreement will need to be approved by the
EAWSD Board of Directors before EAWSD can commit to water service.

If you wish to pursue water service by EAWSD, please contact me to discuss a potential
Development Agreement for the subdivision.

Sincerely,

ANITATION DISTRICT

%

cg! Stave King, P.E., Planning & Projects Manager

General Manaf}
s

/"T'.\\
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WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

TO: Shelly Cobau, Development Review Division Director

FROM: Karen Torres, Water Resources Department

RE: CDRC Case # 06-5290 Colinas del Sol Subdivision T15N ROE Sec 25 &
26; Final Development Plan

DATE: March 2, 2007

I have reviewed the Final Development Plan for the Colinas del Sol Subdivision and find
it in compliance with applicable SFC Land Development Code requirements with the
excoption of the water conservation report and potentially water quality. A few
amendments to the existing water conservation covenants are suggested to be in
compliance with Ordinance 2003-6, Ordinance 2002-13 and Ordinance 2006-8 and
preliminary engineering plans are lacking. Additionaily the new MCL for arsenic was
slightly exceeded in the test well. Re-testing, disclosure and possible treatment with
monitoring are recommended. ' '

Nature of Project

The applicant is proposing a 16 lot subdivision with an average gross density of 12.63
acres. This project is within the basin fringe hydrologic zone though the geology suggests
it is the homestead hydrologic zone as there is no saturated Santa Fe Group in the
subsurface. The subdivision will be supplied by onsite shared domestic wells,
conventional septic tanks and a 30,000 gallon underground tank with dry hydrants for fire
protection. o '

Land Use Code Requirements

Table 7.4 of Article VII Section 6 states all subdivisions containing 6 or more lots are
required to submit water right permits if applicable, water availability assessment, water
conservation report, fire protection plan and water quality analysis. '

Water Availability
Source of Water
The subdivision will be supplied by 3 onsite shared domestic wells.

Hydrogeology Report Review ' _

The applicant’s consultant did two separate caleulations for water availability for this
subdivision. What is termed the worst case/most conservative is the most realistic for this
area,

The aquifer is confined and the pump test showed 341 feet of drawdown in the well after
30 minutes of pumping at a rate of 15 gpm. As this well dewatered so quickly the upper
pottion of the water column is not indicative of the water table, does not appreciably
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contribute to the production of the well and should be discounted in the saturated
thickness calculation.

Based on the consultant’s worst case scenario analysis there appears to be sufficient
water in storage to supply this subdivision.

The methodology to evaluate the lowest practical pumping level did not account for the
confined nature of the aguifer in the area. Subfracting 341 feet of water column to
account for the confined nature of the aquifer gives approximately 200 feet of available
drawdown at the well, '

Using the same parameters as the applicant’s agent except quantity a theis analysis was
performed to simulate pumping at the wellhead. A quantity of 4 gpm was chosen to
reflect the total water budget for the project. The model run estimates 45 feet of
drawdown at the well after 100 years.

To simulate regional drawdown the Shomaker and Associates 2000 report Hydrology,
Groundwater Flow Model and Model Based Predictions of Drawdown and Stream flow
Depletion, El Dorado Area, Santa Fe County, New Mexico was used. Figures 28 and 30
estimate approximately 15 feet of drawdown due to the pumping of El Dorado wells with
other municipal and domestic wells for 100 years,

* Adding the Theis drawdown to the regional drawdown gives an estimated drawdown of

60 feet at the well which is less than the 200 feet of available drawdown at the well. Due
to the low amount of water required by the subdivision the well should be able to sustain
the required production for 100 years,

It is recommended any additional wells be drilled at minimum to a depth of 800 feet to
ensure sufficient water for 100 years.

Water Conservation Report

Water Budget o N

A proposed water budget is 4.0 acre-feet for residential purposes on 16 lots. This figure is
exclusive of line loss and storage for fire protection, however including these should not
cause the water budget to exceed the water available.

Water Conservation Measures

The applicant has submitted Declarations of Covenants and Water Restrictions filed

October 10, 2005. The covenants appear standard but the following additions are
suggested:

1. Kentucky Blue Grass is prohibited pursuant to Ordinance 2002-13.

2. Water Harvesting required pursuant to Ordinance 2003-6.

3. Hot water re-circulating pumps required pursuant to Ordinance 2006-8.

Liquid Waste Disposal System
Individual septic tanks are proposed for each lot.

AT
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Water Quality
Article VII Section 6.5.1d(iv) requires preliminary gineering plans for the water system

if the system will serve more than one connection, No such plan was submitted.

The water in the applicants test well has exceeded the current maximum contaminant
level for arsenic. This is a new EPA drinking water standard as of January 23, 2006 and
the SFC Developiment Code has not caught up to this new standard. Bééausé this is a

- o

public safely issue, adherence to the current EPA Drinking Water is strongly advised but

‘may not b technically requited by the code, As the measured amount of arsenic is only

slightly above this standard retesting is Legommended If upon retesting the arsenic level
is exceeded eatment af the well head; disolosuresfthe exceeded Jevel: disclosiifé of any

asgdéiated-m 14066 Cost to the homeowiiér and sampling of the additional wells for

the project is recommended.
There are 4. (aluminum, sodium, pH and turbidity) secondary maximum contaminant

levels which exoeed thé safe drinking water standards. These havé been listed in the
disclesure statement as required by Article VII Sectiosi 6.5.0b.

If you have any questions, please feel free to call me at 992-9871 or email at
ktorres@co santa-fe.nm.us,
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DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

COLINAS DEL SOL SUBDIVISION

PLEASE READ THIS DISCLOSURE STATEMENT BEFORE YOU SIGN ANY
DOCUMENTS OR AGREE TO ANYTHING '

This disclosure statement is intended to provide you with enough information to permit
you to make an informed decision on the purchase, lease or acquisition of the property
described in this statement. You should read carefully all of the information contained in
this statement before you decide to buy, lease or otherwise acquire the described
property.

Various public agencies may have issued opinions, on both the subdivision proposal and
the information contained in this disclosure statement. They may be favorable or
unfavorable. You should read them closely. '

The Board of County Commissioners has examined this disclosure statement to
determine whether the subdivider can fulfill what the subdivider has said in this
disclosure statement, However, the Board of County Commissioners does not vouch for
the accuracy of what is said in this disclosure statement. In addition, this disclosure
statement is not a recommendation or endorsement of the subdivision by either the
County or the State. It 1s mformative only.

The Board of County Commissioners recomnmends that you inspect the property before
buying, leasing or otherwise acquiring it. If you have not inspected the parcel before
purchasing, leasing or otherwise acquiring it, you have six (6) months from the time
of purchase, lease or other acquisition to personally inspect the property. After
inspecting the parcel within the six (6) month period, you have three (3) days to
rescind the transaction and receive all of your money back from the subdivider
when merchantable title is invested in the subdivider. To rescind the tramsaction,
you must give the subdivider notice of your intent to rescind within three (3) days of
vour inspection of the property.

County regulations require that any deed, real estate coniract, lease or other instrument
conveying an interest in & pareel in the subdivision be recorded with the Santa Fe County
Clerk, - : :

Building permits, wastewater permits or other use permits must be issued by state
or county officials before improvements are constructed. You should investigate the
availability of such permits before you purchase, lease, or otherwise acquire an
interest in the land. You should also determine whether such permits are required
for construction of addifional improverments before you occupy the property.

McMillan
disclosure

s

NDOG/ET/0T dHTIOLHY MYETD AN

S



1. NAME OF SUBDIVISION
Colinas del Sol Subdivision

2, NAME AND ADDRESS OF SUBDIVIDER
High Desert Partnership L.CC

9 Balsa Drive
Santa Fe, NM 87508

3. NAME AND ADDRESS OF PERSON IN CHARGE OF SALES, LEASING OR
OTHER CONVEYANCE IN NEW MEXICO

Russell J. McMillan

9 Balsa Drive
Santa Fe, NM §7508

4, SIZE OF SUBDIVISION BOTH PRESENT AND ANTICIPATED .

LOOT/80/70T dHTICDHT MMHATD 248

Present: Anticipated;
Number of parcels: 16 Number of parcels: 16
Number of acres: 202.006 Number of acres: 202.006

5. SIZE OF LARGEST PARCEL OFFERED FOR SALE, LEASE OR OTHER
CONVEYANCE WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION.

(size of largest parcel in acres) approximately 13.30 acres

6. SIZE OF SMALLEST PARCEL OFFERED FOR SALE, LEASE OR OTHER
CONVEYANCE WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION

(size of smallest parcel in acres) approximately 12.50 acres

7. PROPOSED RANGE OF PRICES FOR SELLING, LEASING OR OTHER
CONVEYANCE

($= lowest amount) (size of parcel sold or leased) 12.5 acres $280,000

($= highest amount) (size of parcel sold or leased) 12.5 acres $380,000

McMillan 2
disclosure
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8. FINANCING TERMS

(interest) 10% to 12%

(term of Toan or confract) 24 months with ons year extension for 1% B
(minimum down payment) 5%

(service charges and/or escrow fees) 1%

(premium for credit life or other iﬁsu:ance if it is a condition for giving credit) NA
(closing costs) 31000 or less

(any other information required by the Truth in Lending Act if not set forth above)
None

9, NAME AND ADDRESS OF HOLDER OF LEGAL TITLE

High Desert Partnership, LLC
9 Balsa Drive
Santa Fe, NM 87508

NO0T/ET/0T TETIOVHE) AddTL 2

10. NAME AND ADDRESS OF PERSON HAVING EQUITABLE TITLE
High Desert Partnership, LCC
9 Balsa Drive
Santa Fe, NM 87508
11. CONDITION OF TITLE
Include at least the following information where applicable:
(number of mortgages) No mortgage currently on property
(name of each moxtgajgee) Not applicable
(balance owing on each mortgage) Not applicable
(summary of the release provisions in cach mortgage) Not applicable.
(numbser of real estate contracts on the subdivided land for which the subdivider is

making payments as a purchaser) There is one real estate contract with Los Altos 1
Partnership.

/T\l
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(name and address of each person holding a real estate contract as owner of the
subdivided land for which the subdivider is making payments as a purchaser) Los
Altos 1 Partnership, 47041 Arcadia Lane, Palm Desert, California, 92260

(balance owing on each real estate contract) $1,500,000.00

(summary of the release provisions in each real estate contract) $190,000.00 per lot
(statement of any other conditions relevant to the state of the title) None

(statement of any other encumbrances on the land) None

12. STATEMENT OF ALL RESTRICTIONS OR RESERVATIONS OF RECORD
THAT SUBJECT THE SUBDIVIDED LAND TO ANY CONDITIONS
AFFECTING ITS USE OR OCCUPANCY

(state all deed and plat restrictions affectmg the subdmded land, including water
testrictions and archeological easements).

The site has secured archaeological clearance and there are no restrictions to building
created by the presence of archeological or historical sites.
Tretr. 1503 g9l

Covenants and Restrictions as recorded in the County Clerk’s Office, Book —
Page = . These Covenants and Restrictions include requirements for water
conservation, Water use, and installation of a water meter and reporting of water use to
the Office of the State Engineer.

LOQT/€C/0T JHIIODHE MIHTD 248

No further division of land is allowed.

Fire protection is provided by an on-site 30,000 gallon storage tank, 8 inch water lines
and four fire hydrants located along the Colinas del Sol, The Lotowners’; Association is
responsible for the maintenance of the fire protection system. The cost for maintenance
of the fire protection system is included as part of the Association fzes,

McMitlan 4
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13. ESCROW AGENT

(name)  Capitol City Title
(address) P.O.Box 1941

e e Gt e, NM 75041941 - e

(statement of whether or not the subdivider has any interest or financial ties with the
escrow agent) The subdivider has no interest or financial ties with the escrow agent.

14. UTILITIES

(name of entity providing telephone service, if available) Qwest
(estimated cost) $70,000+

(name of entity providing electricity, if available) PNM
(estimated cost) $110,000+

(name of entity providing gas service, if available) PNM
(estimated cost) $50.000+

(name of entity providing water if available) Subdivider provides to lot line,
owner provides from lot to house site (estimated cost) $3,000

(nare of entity providing liquid waste disposal, if available) private septic tanks by
lot owner. (estimated cost) $4,0001

(name of entity providing solid waste disposal, if available) Waste Management or
other (estimated cost) $40.00 per house per month.

15, INSTALLATION OF UTILITIES

(water) Subdivider (date) around June, 2008

(telephone) Qwest (date) around June, 2008

(electricity) PNM (date) around June, 2008

(natural gas) - - (date) around June, 2008

(liquid waste disposal) private septic tanks (date) individual lot owner
(solid waste disposal) Waste Managsment Co. or other (date) Contract

with company as the houses are finished

Mehtillan 5
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16, UTILITY LOCATION

(state if all utilities are to be provided to each parcel in the subdivision.) Electricity
and telephone utilities will be brought to each lot, Bach Lot Owner is responsible for
extending the electric and telephone to their building site. It is the responsibility of the
Lot Owner to extend a water line from the lateral line at the road to the building site on
the lot,

(if utilities are to be provided to some but not all parcels in the subdivision, state
which utilities will be provided to ¢ach parcel.) Electric, telephone, natural gas and water
will be provided to each ot in the subdivision.

(state whether or not the subdivider’s proposal conforms with the County's regulation
to place all utilities underground.) All utilities will be installed underground.

17. WATER AVAILABILITY

{describe the maximum annual water requirements of the subdivision including water
for indoor and outdoor domestic uses) .20 acte feet per year are allowed per lot,

(describe the availability and sources of water to mest the subdivision’s maximum
annual water requirements) The source of water for the Subdivision is a shared well
system, with the typical depth of the well on the order of 800 feet,

(describe the means of water delivery within the subdivision) Depending on
production capacity three wells will be constructed within the Subdivision. These wells
will be constructed to a minimum depth of 800 feet. No more than four shared wells will
be drilled within the subdivision,

(describe any limitations and restrictions on either indoor or outdoor water use in the
subdivision). Each lot is limited to .20 acre of water per year, For further detail, see the
water section of the Restrictive Covenants for the Subdivision.

(summarize the provisions of any covenants or other restrictions requiring the use of
water saving fixtutes and other water conservation measures). The water restrictive
covenants provide a limit of .20 acre feet per year per lot. Water saving appliances and
plumbing devices are required, Low water use landscaping techniques are required and
non-native grasses are limited. Swimming pools are not allowed. Homeowners are
required to meet the County rainwater catchment and water conservation ordinances,
2003-13 and 2003-06 respectively.

(deseribe what measures, if any, will be employed to monitor or restrict water use in
the subdivision.) Each well will have a water meter, and each house will a have a meter,
Meter readings are to be documented by the property owner annually within two weeks
of January 1% and shall be provided to the Santa Fe County hydrologist by April 30% of

MeMillan 6
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each year, Meter readings shall be submitted to the Office of the State Engineer on a
regular basis,

18. FOR SUBDIVISIONS WITH COMMUNITY WATER SYSTEMS

Not Applicable e S

19. FOR SUBDIVISIONS WITH INDIVIDUAL DOMESTIC WELLS OR
SHARED WELLS

(state whether wells will be provided by the subdivider or by the prospective
purchaser/lessee/subdivider) Wells will be provided by the Subdivider

(if wells are provided by subdivider, state the estimated cost to complete a domestic
well, including drilling, pressure tank, control devices, storage and treatment) This
section is not applicable since the Subdivider will instali the wells.

(if wells are provided by the subdivider, state the cost, if any to the purchaser/lessee/
subdivider) Individual homeowners must extend a water line to their house pad from the
shared well, This cost is estimated at $3,000.00

NOQZ/ET/0T TATUOOEY MEATD 07

(summary of legal restrictions on either indoor or outdoor usage) As stated in the
water testrictive covenants, a water meter is to be installed at each lot. Meter readings
are to be documented annually by the property owner within two weeks of January 1 and
provided to the Santa Fe County hydrologist with by April 30™ of each year. Water use
is limited to .20 acre feet per year.

(average depth to groundwater and the minimum and maximum well depths to be
reasonably expected) The average depth to groundwater is approximately 160 feet. The
minimum and maximum well depths to be expected are 700 feet and 800 feet
réspectively.

(recommended total depth of well) Approximately 700 to 800 feet,

(estimated yield in gallons per minute of wells completed to recommended iotal
depth) Approximately 15 gallons per minute. All wells will have an underground
cistern.

20. LIFE EXPECTANCY OF THE WATER SUPPLY
(state the life expectancy of each source of water supply for the subdivision under

full development of the subdivision) The consulting hydrologist has determined a 100
vear water supply based on the requirements of the County Land Development Code.

McMillan 7
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21, SURFACE WATER

(provide a detailed statement of the source and yield of the surface water supply
and any rostrictions to which the surface water supply is subject) This does not apply to
this Subdivision,

22. NEW MEXICO STATE ENGINEER'S OPINION ON WATER
AVAILABILITY

Include here the approved summary of the opinion made by the New Mexico State
Engineer regarding (whethet ot not the subdivider can furnish water sufficient in quantity
to fulfill the maximum annual water requirements of the subdivision, including water for
indoor and outdoor domestic uses). A letter from the Office of the State Engineer, dated
July 21, 2006 issued a positive opinion

{(whether or ot the subdivider can fulfill the proposals in this disclosure statement
concerning water, excepting water quality). A letter dated July 20, 2006 from the State
Engineer Water Use and Conservation Bureau concurred with the positive opinion issued
by the OSE.

23. WATER QUALITY

(describe the water quality in the subdivision and whether it is fit for human
consumption) Water quality tests conducted by Assaigai Analytical Laboratories, Ine.
indicate that no Maximum Contaminant Ievels were exceeded. Four Secondary
Contaminant Levels were exceeded based on the water quality testing. The water is
suitable for human consumption but additional treatment is recommended at the house.

(describe any quality that would make the water unsuitable for use within the
subdivision) The four Secondary Contaminant Levels that exceed Santa Fe County

parameters are not necessarily a threat to human health but may affect the taste, odor or
appearance of the water,

(state cach maximum allowable water quality parameters that has been exceeded and
the name of the slement, compound, or standard that has exceeded that parameter) The
four Secondary Contaminant Levels that exceeded Santa Fe County parameters are;

Aluminum - 476 mg/l versus a standard of .200 mg/1

Sodivm — 141mg/l versus a standard of 100 mg/1

pH - 9.21 versus a standard of 6.5 to 8.5

Turbidity — 6.41 NTU versus a standard of 5.00 NTU

McMillan 8
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Attached as Appendix A is the assessment of the Secondary Contaminant Levels, the
possible effects and the recommended freatment prepared by James Corbin, professional
ENgInger.

34 NEW MEXICO ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT’S OPINION ON-WATER~~ -
QUALITY -

25,
Include here the approved summary of the opinion from the New Mexico
Environment Department regarding;

(whether or not the subdivider can fumish water of an acceptable quality for human
consumption and measures to protect the water supply from contamination in conformity
with state regulations). NMED does not generally comment on water quality.

(whether or not the subdivider can fulfill the water quality proposal made in this
disclosure statement). NMED does not generally comment on water quality.

(whether or not the subdivider’s proposal for water guality conforms to the County's
regulations on water quality). NMED does not generally comment on water quality.

TNOQE/ET/0T JHTIOLHEYT AEATY W

25. LIQUID WASTE DISFOSAL

(describe the precise type of liquid wastc disposal system that is proposed and that
has been approved by the Board for use within the subdivision). Eachhouse will have a
private septic system which must be approved by the New Mexico Environment
Department at the time of the building permit.

NOTE: No other liquid waste disposal system may be used in a subdivision
other than the system approved by the Board.

26, NEW MEXICO ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT’S OPINION ON LIQUID
WASTE DISPOSAL

Include here the approved summary of the opinion received by the Board from the
New Mexico Environment Department regarding:

(whether there are sufficient liquid waste disposal facilities to fulfill the
requirements of the subdivision in conformity with state regulations). The NMED
provided review comments on July 3, 2006 which requires each lot owner to obtain a
liquid waste permit prior to construction.

(whether or not the subdivider can fulfill the liquid waste disposal proposals made
in this disclosure statement, NMED will review individua! liquid waste permit for each
lot prior to construction.

7N
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(whether or not the subdivider’s proposal conforms with the County's regulations
on liquid waste disposal). The proposal is in compliance with the County’s regulations in
regards to utilizing individual septic systems as permitted by the New Mexico
Environment Department

27, SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL

(deseribe the means of sold waste disposal that is proposed for use within the
subdivision). Each landowner is responsible for contracting with a licensed solid waste
hauler to pick up and remove solid waste at a frequency of no less than once each seven
days.

28. NEW MEXICO ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT’S OPINION ON SOLID
WASTE DISPOSAL

Include here the approved summary of the opinion received by the Board from the
New Mexico Environment Department regarding:

(whether or not there are sufficient solid waste disposal facilities to fulfill the needs of

the subdivision in conformity with state regulations). NMED did not comment on solid
waste disposal,

(whether or not the subdivider can fulfill the solid waste disposal proposals made in
this disclosure statement). NMED did not comment on solid waste disposal.

{(whether or not the subdivider’s proposal for solid waste conforms to the County’s
regulations on solid waste disposal), The County’s acceptance and recording of the
Subdivison Plat indicates compliance with the solid waste proposal.

29. TERRAIN MANAGEMENT

(describe the suitability for residential use of the soils in the subdivision as
defined in the Soil and Water Conservation District’s soil survey for Santa Fe County).
According to information from the National resources Conservation Service data, the
most comimon soil types on the property are Panky loam, Zozobra-Jacocita Complex,
Khapo Sandy Loam, Zepol 8ilt Loam, Khapo Fine Sandy Loam, Agua Fria-Paraje
Complex. :

(describe any measures necessary for overcoming soil and topographic limitations
and who will be responsible for implementing these measures). Soils are generally suited
for their intended use which is road construction, house construction and septic tank and
leach fields. If clay soils are encountered it is recommended the footings be over-
excavated to a soil layer more suitable for the building foundation.

McMillan 10
disclosure

LO0Z/2T0/0T JHTEODHY MdHTD D4A8

NR-E2




(identify by lot and block numbers all parcels within the subdivision located in whole
or in part on slopes in excess of 15%). Lots 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 have slopes int excess of 15
percent.

(identify by lot and block number all parcels within the subdivision that are subject to

flooding). Lois 4, 5, and 6, , are located adjacent fo a 100 year flood plain as designated
on the FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map. A building setback is shown on the plat
indicating the distance that buildings must be set back from this drainage.

(describe the subsurface drainage for all lots in the subdivision). Subsurface drainage
runs north to south across the property.

(describe the surface drainage for all lots in the subdivision), Surface drainage is
varied but generally runs from east to west across the property. Five detention ponds will
be constructed by the Subdivider. Culverts will be installed at five locations along
Colinas del Sol Road.

(describe the nature, location and completion dates of all storm drainage systems
constructed in the subdivision, including the completion date of any required to be
constructed). Five storm water detention ponds will be constructed by the Subdivider.
These ponds hold storm water for several lots and take the place of ponding on individual
lots. The five culverts carry water under Colinas del Sol to the central storm water ponds.
The storm drainage improvements that service the development will be installed by
January of 2008,

(describe restrictions and other development requirements if ots are located on 15%
slopes or ridge tops). Buildings are not subject to ridgetop restrictions within this
Subdivision. Leachfields must be contructed on the area of the lot with a slope of less
than 15 percent.

(describe detention pond requirements for each lot). The central storm water
detention ponds have been sized to accommodate the runoff from the roads and lot
improvements. If the disturbed area on cach lot exceeds 14,000 square feet, the runoff in
excess of this amount must be detained or retained on the lot. A professional engineer
must calculate the additional ponding requirements and the location and design of the
pond(s) when the improved area exceeds 14,000 square feet

(describe restrictions of development within buildable areas per approved plans and
County terrain management regulations). Each lot includes a buildeble area meeting
County standards, Building areas shown on the Development Plan are provided to show
compliance with the County Terrain Management Regulations. Other sites may be
selected by the Owner providing the satisfy the Terrain Management Regulations,

30. SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT'S OPINION ON
TERRAIN MANAGEMENT

McMillan 1t
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(include here the summary of the opinion received by the Board from the Soil and
Water Conservation District). A letter from the Santa Fe Pojoaque Soil and Water
Conservation District, dated August 9, 2006 confirms that the proposal is ih compliance
with the with Terrain Management regulations of the Santa Fe County Land
Development Code. :

(whether on not the subdivider can furnish terrain management sufficient to protect
against flooding, inadequate drainage and soil erosion). All concerns for grading and
drainage and soil erosion are addressed by Morey Walker P.B. and are included within
the Terrain Management plan sets.

(whether or not the subdivider can satisfy the terrain management proposals made in
this disclosure statement). All terrain management commients are addressed prior to
recording Subdivision plat along with Disclosure Statement and Covenants.

(whether or not the subdivider’s proposal conforms with the County’s regulations on
terrain management. The Land Use Administrator’s signature and recordation of the plat
reflects conformance with Santa Fe County terrain management regulations,

31. SUBDIVISION ACCESS
(name of town nearest subdivision)., Santa Fe

(distance from nearest town to subdivision and the route over which the distance is
computed). The subdivision is approximately 12 miles from Santa Fe,

(describe access roads to subdivision). US 84-285, Avenida Eldorade, Camino de
Compadres and North Colinas del Sol,

(state whether of not any roads are required within the subdivision which will not be
built until a future date, e.g. connection roads to future developments on adjoining

parcels). All roads shown on the plat will be constructed as part of the subdivision
improverments.

(state whether or not subdivision is accessible by conventional vehicle), The
subdivision is accessible by a conventional vehicle.

(state whether or not subdivision is ordinarily accessible in all seasons and under all
weather conditions). The subdivision is ordinarily accessible in ali seasons and under all
weather conditions,

(desctibe width and type of surfacing of all roads within the subdivision).
Colinas del Sol has an improved width of 20 feet with 6 inches of basecourse material on
a compacted subbase.

MeMillan 12
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32. MAINTENANCE

(state whether the roads, drainage improvements and other improvements within the
Subdivision will be maintained by the County, Subdivider or an association of lot
owners). Colinas de! Sol, the centralized storm water ponds, the project identification
T T T T “"gi‘gn;—are‘to—be'"m'aintai_ned‘by'th'e“lzotowners1—ASSOCiati6ﬂ-—'—Th3' shared-wells-are to-be - —

-

maintained by the property owners served by the respective well under shared well
provisions set forth in the restrictive covenants for the Subdivision,

(if the roads within the subdivision have not been accepted for maintenance by the
County, state how the roads will be maintained and describe lot owner’s responsibilities
and obligations with respect to road maintenance). The roads will be maintained by the
Colinas del Sol Lot Owners Association.

{describe what measures have been taken to make sure maintenance takes place). As
set forth in the covenants fees are assessed for the purpose of maintenance, with the
Association having the right to lien landowners who fail to make their required
association fees.

33. STATE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT'S OPINION ON ACCESS

Include here the approved summary of the opinion received by the Board from the
State Highway Department regarding:

(whether or not the subdivider can fulfiil the state highway access tequirements for
the subdivision in conformity with state regulations) NMDOT in a letter dated August
11, 2006 stated that there would be no adverse impact from drainage from this
Subdivision.

(whether or not the subdivider can satisfy the access proposals made in this disclosure
statement) NMDOT in a letter dated August 11, 2006 stated that there would ba no
adverse impact from drainage from this Subdivision.

(whether or not the subdivider is conforming with the County's regulations on
access). Acceptance of the Subdivision and recording of the Plat indicates the
Subdivider’s conformance with County regulations.

34. CONSTRUCTION GUARANTEES

(describe any proposed roads, drainage structures, water treatment facilities or other
improvements that will not be completed before parcels in the subdivision are offered for
sale). These improvements may not be completed prior to the sale of any lot.

(describe all performance bonds, letters of credit, or other collateral securing the
completion of each proposed improvement). A financial guarantee is held by the Santa

MoMitian 13
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Fe County Land Use Department for roads, and drainage structures and fire protection
system. These improvements may not be completed before lots are sold.

NOTE: Unless there is a sufficient bond, letter of credit or other adequate
collateral to secure the completion of proposed improvements, it is possible that
the proposed improvements will not be completed, Caution is advised.

35, ADVERSE OR UNUSUAL CONDITIONS

(state any activities or conditions adjacent to or nearby the subdivision, such as
feedlots, cement plants, dairies, airports and the like, that would subject the subdivided
land to any unusual conditions affecting its use or occupancy). There is an existing
electric line located on lots 8,9,11 and 12. This line may be relocated by the Subdivider.

36, RECREATIONAL FAéILlTIES
(describe all recteational facilities, actual and proposed, in the subdivision) Nong
(state, the estimated date of completion of each proposed recreational facility) NA
{state whether or not there are any bonds, letters of credit or other collateral securing

the construction of each proposed recreational facility and desctibe any such bond, letter
of eredit or other collateral) NA

LOOZ/ET/70T JHTIODHE AddTD D48

37. FIRE PROTECTION

(stafement as to whether or not on-site fire protection will be provided.) A 30,000
gallon underground storage tank will be constructed. Four hydrants will be serviced on an
8 inch water that extends from the 30,000 gallon strorage tank.

(distance to nearest fire station from subdivision) The Avenida Vista Grande
substation is  approximately 7.0 miles. (state whether the fire department is fill-time or
volunfeer) Volunteer :

(state whether or not a fire hydrant is within 1000 feet of the buildable portion of each
lot.) Four hydrants will by constructed within the subdivision. The location of the
hydrant is not known since the house location is determined by the Lot Owner.

(state whether or not a residential sprinkler system meeting NFPA standards is

required.) A residential sprinkler systern meeting NFPA13-D standards is required for
each house

38. POLICE PROTECTION

List the various police units that would patrol the subdivision: Santa Fe County
Sheriff's Department,

McMillan 14
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(sheriff's department, if applicable) Santa Fe County Sheriff’s Department.

(municipal police, if applicable) Not Applicable.

YAETD D78

(statepolice; if applicable) The-State Police patrot US 285 — "= ==~~~

39. PUBLIC SCHOOLS

{name of and distance to nearest public elementary school serving the subdivision)
Eldorado Elementary School at 6.5 miles.

{name of and distance to nearest public junior high or middle school serving the
subdivision) Capshaw Middle School located in Santa Fe approximately 18 miles

(name of and distance to nearest public high school serving the subdivision) Capitol
High School located in Santa Fe approximately 20 miles,

40. HOSPITALS

(name of nearest hospital) St. Vincent’s Hospital located in Santa Fe. The distance
along US 285 and Interstate 25 is approximately 20 riles

"NIOT/ET/0T THTHODHY
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(number of beds in nearest hospital), Licensed for 185 beds.

41, SHOPPING FACILITIES

(description of nearest shopping facilities including number of stores) The Agora
Shopping Center is located in Eldorado north along US 285 approximately six miles.
Villa Linda Mall is located in Santa Fe north along US 84-285, west along Interstate 25
and north along Cerrillos Road approximately 23 miles.

(distance to nearest shopping facilities and route over which that distance is
computed) See above

42, PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION

{Describe all public transportation that serves the subdivision on a regular basis.)
There is no public transportation in this area.

43, COMPLETION DATES

{state the projected dates upon which the items mentioned in #36 through #42 above

will be available if they are not yet available), #37-#41 are currently available. #36 (
and #42 are not available, 3
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Owner has caused this Declaration to be signed as of the
date first above written,

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
} ss.
COUNTY OF SANTAFE )

—~

nel - .
On this rg 9 dayof [ » [Oéﬂ._ , 2007, the foregoing instrument was
acknowledged before me by the person(s) whose name(s) appear above.

s

My commission expires:
y Public

5/ 23/ zou

APPROVED BY COUNTY LAND USE ADMINISTRATOR

¥ Tack Kolkmeyer

%fgi oo /53057

COUNTY OF SANTA FE ) PISCLOSURE

STATE OF NEW MEXICo } ss PRCES: 20

T Hereby Certify Thalk Thas Instrument Was Filed for
Recard On The 23RD Bay Of Dotaber, AD., 2807 at 14:44

fAnd Uas Du{y Recorded as Tnstrument # 1593803
0f The Records Of Santa Fe Dounty
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EXHIBIT A

CORBIN CON SULTING, INC.,
‘ 8 Descanso Road
Santy Fe, New Mexico 87508
Phones: (505) 4664605 « Fax (505) 466-0557
E-Mail: CosbinCons@aol.cam
May 17, 2006
_JimSiebest R e
Siebert & Associates
Mercer Street
Santa Fe, NM 87508

Re: Colinas Del Sol — Water Quality -
Dear Mr. Siebent:

Atmghedisﬂ:#mtexqua]ﬁympoﬁ“hichshom%einsmedinﬂmwwwty
Appendix that was received from the state certified testing laboratory on the water samples -
provide from the Colinas Del Sol exploratory well (RG-86754), Enclosurs #1. No Maximum

Contaminant Levels (MCL’s) wers excoeded.

Four Secondary Maximum Contrminant Levels (SMCL’s) as established by the Safe

Drinking water Standards were excoeded. Paragraph 6.5.2b.

contaminant levels that exceed the established SMCL's. “The subdivider must state in the
disclosure staternent on water quality the name of the contaminant exceeded; the contaminant

requires that the following occur for

R

“00%/£0/0T QETIODHY YRIET) O

level; the SMCL of the conteminant; the expected adverse effects of the contaminant for

domestic water usg; and, the recommended method to reduce

the contaminant level to or below

the SMCL.” The attached addresses all of the above in table format for inclusion in the Water
Quality Appendix in the report for the following contaminants, Enclosure #2,

* Aluminum — 0.467 mg/l vs a standard of 0.200 mg/l

* Sodium ~ 141 mg/l 'vs a standard of 100 mg/!
* pH—9.21 vs a standard of 6.5 t0 8.5
» Turbidity — 6.41 NTU vs the standard of 5.00

 Please add this material to the Water Quality Section o
Geohydrology Report. Thank You!

Sincerely,

James E, Corbin,
Encl; as

Ce: McMillan

LA

NTU

£ the Colinas Del Sol |
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DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS
COLINAS DEL SOL SUBDIVISION

_ARTICLE 1: DECLARATION

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
The undersigned, High Desert Partnership LCC, the owner of the real property
now duly platted as the Colinas del Sol Subdivision as shown by the plat thereof

_filed in the office of the County Clerk of Santa Fe Cogﬂy, New Mexico, on the
2% day of (L 2007 , at Plat BookAsT; Page 19 - WASE Reception No. ! S02¥9

HEREBY MAKES THE FOLLOWING DECLARATION as to limitation,
restrictions and uses to which the lots or tracts constituted said Subdivision may
be put, HEREBY SPECIFIYING that said declarations shell constifute covenants
to run with all of the land, as provided by law, and shall be binding to all parties
and all persons claiming under them and for the benefit of and limitations upon all
future owners in said Subdivision, this declaration of restrictions being designed
for the purpose of keeping said Subdivision desirable and suitable in architectural
design and use as herein specified, whether or not the same are embodied in the
conveyance or other instrument aftecting title thereto.

ARTICLE 2: DEFINITIONS

Colinas de! Sol/McMillan

COYs

2.01  “Lo#” shall mean each and every numbered lot sold or held for sale in the
Subdivision as shown on the Plat of survey of said Subdivision filed in the
Office of the County Clerk of Santa Fe County, New Mexico, at Plat Book
ob1 , Page %m under Reception No.150%%90 “Lots” shall not
include property withheld from sale by the Subdivider for dedication to
the County of Santa Fe, nor property with held from sale by the
Subdivider for the exclusive use of the residents of the Subdivision or for

utility services, “Lots” will mean tract.

2.02 “Architectural Approval” shall mean approval of plans and specifications
by the petson or persons designated herein to give and withhold said
transferred approval, or, following the sale of thirty-three percent (33%) of
the lots in the Subdivision, an Architectural Control Committee appointed
by the “Lotowners” Association as provided for herein.

203 “Lotowners” Association shall mean a non-profit corporation, to be
incorporated by the Subdivider, not later than thirty (30) days from the
date upon which thirty-three percent (33%) of the lots in the Subdivision
have been sold, and in which the ownership of each lot in the Subdivision
shall give rise to one membership. Said Association shall have the power
to appoint an Architectural Control Committee, and such other powers as
it may be granted by the Subdivider, by the members of the “Lotowners”
Association or as the Association may possess as a matter of law,

2/87/0T QHTIO0HY WA D79
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including but not limited to the right and power to own real property for
the benefit of the residents of the Subdivision,

Once the “Lotowners™ Association is formed, the developer shall have no
voting privileges.

204 “Household pets” shall mean dogs, cats, hamsters and birds and similar
small animals.

ARTICLE 3: DURATION

These restrictive covenants shall run with and bind with the land, and shall inure
to the benefit of and be enforceable by the “Lotowners” Association for the owner
of any lot subject fo the Restrictive Covenants, the respective legal
representatives, heirs, successors, and assigns, until 2020, after which time said
Convents shall be automatically extended for successive periods of ten (10) years
each unless an instrument signed by the then owners of 2/3 of the lots in the
Subdivision has been recorded which expressly terminates the operation of the
Restrictive Covenants. These Covenants cannot be amended by the developer.

ARTICLE 4: SEVERABILITY

LO0Z/CT/0T JHTIODAY XMYATY 248

Invalidation of any one or more of these covenants by judgment of court order
shall in no way effect any of the remaining provisions, which shall remain in full
force and effect. In the event any parties hereto or their heirs or assigns shall
violate or attempt to violate any of the covenants contained herein, it shall be
lawful for the Subdivider, or any person or persons owning any real property
situated in said parcels to prosecute any proceedings at law or in equity against
the person or persons violating or attempting to violate any such covenant in order
to prevent them from further violation or to recover damages for such violation.

ARTICLES: AMENDMENTS

These Restrictive Covenants may be amended by the vote of 2/3 of the then
owners of lots subject to these Restrictive Covenants. Such amendment must
uniformly affect all lots within the Subdivision.

ARTICLE 6: PERMITTED USES

Upon ¢ach lot in the Colinas del Sol Subdivision there may be erected a principle
residence consisting of one (1) detached single—family dwelling together with
such structures and out buildings as are commonly and customarily appurtenant
thereto including, but not limited to detached solar collectors: said dwellings may
be used only for private residential purposes and shall be designed and built for
use by a single family. All plans for every structure to be built shall be approved

Colinas def SolMcMillan 2
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as herein provided before construction shall begin. Additionally, upon each lot in
said Subdivision there shall be permitted the following.

a. One (1) private garage

b. One (1) barn or stable; barn area not to exceed 1,400 squars feet on lots
e allowing horses _ e

c. One (1) corral on lots allowing horses

d. One (1) attached studio

ARTICLE 7: PROHIBITIONS

7.01  Minimum Square Footage, The ground floor of the structure, exclusive of
portals, porches and garages, shall be not less than one thousand, seven
hundred (1,700) square feet, and shall not be built without an aftached
garage of sufficient size to accommodate at least two (2) automobiles,
which garage shall be used for vehicles and not storage. The construction
of the exterior of all buildings shall be finished within one (1) year from
the start of construction. Finished floors on lots 4, 5, and 6 shall be setata
minimum of one foot (1°) above the FEMA 100-year base flood elevation
and shown on the Plat.

00Z/€7/0T QETIOLHY YMIETD
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7.02  Set-Backs, No structure shall be built nearer than one hundred feet (100”)
from any lot line. The Architectural Control Committée may grant a
variance from this standard depending on the location of swrrounding
houses and the view corridors. Lots 4, 5, and 6 are within the FEMA
Special Flood Hazard Areas, all structures shall have a fifty foot (507)
setback from the limit of the one-hundred (100} year flood plain as
identified by the building envelope shown on lots 4, 5 and 6. This setback
from the flood plain shall not be reduced by the Architectural Control
Committee.

7.03  Types and Uses of Residences. No trailer, mobile home, basement, tent,
shack, garage, barn or other outbuildings shall at any time be used as a
residence, nor shall any residence of temporary character be erected.
Extra automobiles, trailers, boats, recreational vehicles and similar mobile
structures and vehicles shall be screened from view by means of a coyote
fence, wall, or similar treatment. All screening shall be located outside the
Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHA),

7.04 Fencing. Fencing of lots, or fences of any nature except enclosures for
pets, horses or private gardens may be crected or maintained, provided
such barriers are shown on the original plans for structure, or the plans for
which are approved in the same manner as is herein provided for the
approval of the original plans for construction. Not more than two and ,
one-half (2 ¥) acre shall be fenced for horses; all other fenced areas are (

Calinas del Sol/McMillan 3
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7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

7.09

restricted to one-half (1/2) acre. Al Fencing shall be located outside the
Special Flood Hazard Ateas (SFHA),

Animals. No animals or any poultry of any kind shall be kept or raised on
said lots, except household pets, not to exceed four (4) in number, Horses,
not to exceed one (1) on each lot is permitted and shall be so controlled
and confined that they cannot open graze on said lot, or any other lot.
Additiona] horses may be allowed providing that evidence of water
conservation measures is submitted to Santa Fe County at time of building
permit, that total water use for the lot does not exceed .20 acre faet per
year. Examples of water conservation measures include rain-water
harvesting from the roof of the dwelling and gray water recycling, At the
time of the building permit application the Lot Owner/Builder will have to
clearly describe the design solution and the water savings associated with
proposed water conservation measure. A horse consumes 4380 gallons a
year. For each 4380 gallons saved through water conservation, one
additional horse is permitted, All barns, stables, and corrals for confining
horses in combination, shall not occupy more than two and one-half (2 '4)
acre of land area, and shall be of good design and sound construction, as
determined by the “Lotowners” Association and the State Construction
Industries Division, respectively. Solid waste from horse corrals must be
removed on a regular basis. All animals should be under the control of
the lot purchaser at all times. Lot purchasers shall prevent the animal in
any way becoming a nuisance cither from noises created by the animals,
odors or other practice or conduct which may ereaté a nuisance.

Oil and mineral operations. No oil drilling, oil development operations,
oil refining, quarrying or mining operation of any kind shall be permitted
upon or in any lot, nor shall oil wells, tanks, tunnels, mineral excavations
or shafts be permitted on or in any lot. No derrick or other structures
designed for use in boring for oil or natural gas shall be erected,
maintained or permitted upon any lot, provided, however, that this
provision may not be binding upon the owners of mineral interests which
have been separated from the fee simple title. :

Hunting. No hunting or discharge of firearms shall be permitted,

Signage. No signs except those indicated the name and address of fthe
residents of any lot shall be maintained or installed. No signs or other
advertising shall be displayed on any lot unless first approved in writing
by the “Lotowners” Association provided, however, that any owner may
without such prior approval, erect (1) sign of not more than 2’ x 4’
advertising the lot for sale or rent. '

Storage. No storage of building materials other than during construction
shall be permitted. No storage vard for any materials other than those

Colinas del SolMeMilan 4
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commornly and regularly used in residential uses or for purposes of
construction of the infrastructure of the subdivision shall be permitted.
Garages shall not be used as storage.

7.10 Lighting. No lights mounted on a pole of otherwise suspended more than

—— -ten-feet-(102)-above-the—ground.- and-designed.-to-_illuminate an area from
dusk to dawn may be placed on a lot unless it is adequately shielded to
prevent being a nuisance to surrounding land owners, as determined by the
“Lotowners” Association, and can be turned off at night by the resident.
No mercury, sodjium vapor or similar bright lights of any kind shall be
allowed.

ﬁ IS

7.11  Antennae & Towers. Antennae, masts and towers of all types shall be
governed by the general height and nuisance restrictions of these
covenants, Television and other receiver dishes shall be scresned from
view from nearby lots and roads.

7.12 Nuisances. No noxious or offensive activity can be carried on upon any
lot, nor shall anything be done thereon which may be or may become an
annoyance or nuisance to the residents of the Subdivision. This provision
shall be liberally construed to include activities which are offensive to
reasonable person such as the disposal or retention of trash, retention of
junked vehicles, carrying on of loud activities, the conduct of any activity
which produces interference to ordinary TV reception such as improperly
tunecd HAM or CB reception or transmission stations, ete. The Board shall
have the authority to intervene in cases whete the constant barking of dogs
creates a nuisance for the residents within the Subdivision. The Board can
take action as permitted by law to address the barking of dogs which
creates a nuisance.

TNO0T/ET/0T JdTEI0Rd
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ARTICLE 8: CONSTRUCTION

8.01 Limitations. Construction shall begin within ninety (90) days after
approval of plans is given by the Subdivider or by the Architectural
Control Committee; in the event construction is not timely begun, plans
and specifications shall be resubmitted to the Subdivider or to the
Architectural Control Commitice for approval before construction is
begun; once begun, exterior construction of any structure or revegetation

- ot landscaping of any excavated area shail be completed within two
hundred forty (240) weather working days; provided that nothing herein
contained shall prohibit staged construction: in any stage construction of
the principal residence construction shall be completed within two
hundred forty (240) weather working days; provided further that the initial
stage shall not be of less than one thousand, seven hundred (1700} square
feet, and provided further that upon completion of any stage, the structure (

Colinas del SolMeMillan 5
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ARTICLE 9:

Colinas del Sol/McMillan

cQvs

8.02

8.03

8.04

9,01

9.02

which is so built shall have the exterior appearance of finished
construction,

Protection of vegetation. Prior to construction, contractual requirements
shall be made of the builder requiring him or her to refrain from damaging
or removing trees and other vegetation, except as may be teasonably
necessary and unavoidable for clearance of a building site and
construction of driveways, parking areas and turnarounds,

Revegetation. Revegetation of sites damaged by construction shall oceur,
consisting of plant materials indigenous to the area, except for cultivated
garden areas,

Height. No structure shall be erected that exceeds cighteen (18) feet
above the highest point of the land adjacent to the building fagade. The
Architectural Control Committee may permit heights up to twenty-four
(24) feet upon careful review of the architectural treatment of the building
design. :

ARCHITECTUAL APPROVAL

Approval, Approval of the style and location of houses, barns and other
structures shall be required for their construction, exterior modification, or
additions on any lot in the Colinas del Sol Subdivision, and the location
and design of all on-site water and wastewater systems. Said approval
shall be given by the Architectural Control Committee following
submission of plans and specifications and upon compliance with the
standards hetein set forth,

Standards. Standards for architectural approval are:

a. No principle residence shall be of less than seventeen hundred (1700)
square feet as measured by the perimeter of the exterior walls
surrounding interior heated space.

b. The type of construction and architecture shall be based upon and

adhere generally to Santa Fe style architecture or Territorial style
architecture, Northern New Mexico pitched roofs are allowed.
Modifications which further the use of solar energy or other energy
sources are encouraged when judged by the Architectural Control
Committee to be in harmony with the overall guidelines for the
development. The use of construction materials having the appearance
of local, indigenous and traditional building materials is encouraged
and favored, including the use of muted earth tone colors for exterior
finishes, but excluding bright shades of red, blue, yellow, white, etc.
Other materials may be used where their use will be in accordance
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with sound architectural practice and will not be visually offensive in
the sole discretion of the Subdivider or the Architectural Control
Committes, as the case may be. The detetmination of whether
modification of architectural styles is moderate and reasonable shall
likewise be in the sole discretion of the Subdivider or the Architectural

the Architectural Control Committee shall be that an act in good faith
for the benefit of all owners of lots in the Subdivision.

c. All extensions of utilities shall be underground to all structures at all
locations. No electrical or telephone lines shall be maintained above
ground at any {ime, Propane tanks shall be underground.

d. No exterior floodlights or street lamps shall be installed, operated or
maintained on any lot in such manner that light there from shall
directly illuminate lands other than those of the owner thereof.

e. All construction shall meet all County and State regulations and codes.

ARTICLE 10: INTERIM ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL COMMITTEE

10.01

10.02

Appointment/Terms. Until the sale of the seventh (7%) lot the
Subdivider shall serve as the Architectural Control Committee. Upon the
sale of the seventh (7%) lot an Interim Architectural Control Commmittee
shall rev1ew development plans for each lot. Upon the sale of the
seventh (7%) lot, the Subdjvider shall appoint an Interim Architectural
Coniro! Committee consisting of three (3) members. The Subdivider
shall serve as an automatic member. The other two (2) members shall be
appointed by the Subdivider. At least one (1) of the appomted members
shall be an owner of a lot in the Subdivision. The third (3') member
shall be a resident of Santa Fe County. The members shall serve until the
sale of the last lot in the Subdivision, at which time a permanent
Architectural Control Committee will be appointed by the “Lotowners”
Association, or as otherwise provided for in the “Lotowners” Association
By-Laws.

Non-Lmbxhty of Committee. The Committee shall not be responsible for
any defects in architectural plans or specifications or in any building or
structure erected according to such plans and specifications. The
Committee shall not be liable for damages to anyone so submitting plans
for approval, or to any owner or owners of land covered by this
instrument by reason of mistake in judgment, negligence or nonfeasance
of itself, its agents or employees, arising out of or in connection with the
approval or disapproval or failure to approve any such plans, Any person
or entity submitting plans to the Committee for approval submitting plans
to the committee for approval shall for himself, and his successors and
assigns, by the submitting of such plans, waive all claims for damages
resulting from any such acts or omissions. Approval of plans by the
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committee does not amount to any representation that the plans or other
proposed use of the lot conform to these restrictive covenants.
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ARTICLE 11: “Lotowners” ASSOCIATION

11.01 Assessments/Purpose. Upon the sale of thirty-three percent (33%) of the
lots in the Subdivision and the formation of the “Lotowners” Association,
—— e ____as-aforesaid, the “Lotowners” Association shall have the right and power vy
to assess each lot ownet, for the purpose of cleaning and maintaining all
properties held by it for the benefit of the said owners of the lots in the
Subdivision, and for the purpose of maintaining the roadways, drainage
improvements, fire protection system in the Subdivision, and such
assessments to be for other purposes as my be agresd upon by the
members

VAT DG

11.02 Amount. The amount of the “Lotowners™ Association assessment will be
determined annually by the governing officers of the Association. The
amount assessed shall be paid not later than sixty (60) days following the
delivery of notice thereof to the owner of each lot. Delivery of said notice
shall be made to the principal residence on each such lot, or if no
residence exists thereupon, to the address of the owner as shown on the
most recent deed of record on file in the office of the Clerk of Santa Fe
County, and if no addtess is shown, then by posting said notice on the
most public portion of said lot.

.

ALQ0C/80/0T THTIOOH
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11.03 Liens: The said “Lotowners” Association shall have a lien against the lot
of any owner o secure the payment of said assessment. Said lien shall be
enforceable by the same procedure as provided for enforceable by the
same procedure as provided for enforcement of a material man’s lien,
including the right to attorney fees.

11.04 Fees. In addition to the “Lotowners” Association assessment, there will
be a two hundred dollar ($200) fee payable to the “Lotowners”
Association upon the initial purchase of a [ot in the Subdivision, and upon
resale of lots, said fee will be paid by the new buyer. Al initial purchase
fees received before the “Lotowners” Association is formed will be held in
escrow and paid to the “Lotowners” Association upen its incorporation.

11.05 Taxes. The developer shall pay property taxes on the property until each
lot is sold.

ARTICLE 12: SOLAR ENERGY

Solar Rights. The owners of each lot shall have the right to the use and

enjoyment of radiant energy from the sun which naturally impinges on their lot(s)

and neither grantor nor any Lotowners shall in any way obstruct or interfere with

the path of natural radiation from the sun to any adjacent lot. No vegetation, (
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structure, fixture, or other object shall be so situated that it casts a shadow at
distance greater than 20 feet across any property line on December 21 between
the hours of %:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. standard time provided that this restriction
does not apply to utility wite and similar objects which obstruct light and which
are needed and situated for reasonable use of the property in a mannet consistent
with other covenants herein, The Landowners within the development recognize
the desirability of creating and maintaining a common place to ensure access for
direct sunlight on all parcels within the development for public health, aesthetic

and other purposes, specifically including access to sunlight for solar energy
collectors,

ARTICLE 13: COMMERCIAL ACTIVITIES ALLOWED

Nothing herein shall be construed to prohibit the use of space within a residence
for professional or other office in which there is employed not more than one (1)
employee or other person who does not reside on said lot which does not
‘substantially increase the flow of traffic to such lot to a level greater than that
normally generated by such a residence.

ARTICLE 14: CONSTRUCTION SITES

The selection of all construction sites on any lot shall be subject to approval of the
Subdivider or the Architectural Control Committee. Said approval may be
withheld if the site selected will unreasonably interfere with drainage patterns or
archaeological sites, will violate set-back requirements, will result in excesglve
cutting and filling, would be inappropriate for location of on-site sewage disposal
systetns, or will require excessive removal of native vegetation,

ARTICLE 15: LIQUID WASTE DISPOSAL.

All on-site liquid waste disposal systems shall comply with the tequirements of
Santa Fe County and New Mexico Environment Department. Prior to installation
of on-site septic systems, all Lotowners are to certify to the suitability of the soil
to accept domestic liquid waste, and are requited o obtain Environment
Department approval for installation of the individual liquid waste system.
Should the soil type prove to be unacceptable for conventional on-site, septic tank
and leach field systems, Lotowners are required to use Secondary treatment
systems as authorized by the New Mexico Environment Department.

Colinas del Sol/MeMillan 10
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ARTICLE 16: SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL

Each lot owner will contrast with a qualified company to collect solid waste on a
weekly basis. Should the lot owner fail to provide for the disposal of solid waste,
and it becomes a nuisance for the Subdivision, the Association shall have the right

and authority to arrange for solid waste pick up on a weekly basis on behalf of the
negligent lot owner. The lot owner will be assessed for the cost of the solid waste
collection and failure to pay the assessment will result in a lien against the
property pursuant to the provisions of this Declaration.

ARTICLE 17: EASEMENTS

17.01 Restrictions. No lot owner shall build or erect any structure upon any road,
utility, drainage, or other easement as shown on the plats of the Subdivision,

ARTICLE 18: SHARED WELLS; WATER USE LIMITATIONS; COUNTY
DEVELOPMENT CODE; CONSERVATION PLAN; SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR
ENFORCEMENT

18,01 Shared Wells. Domestic water use is restricted to .20 acre feel per year

(65,170 gallons per year). The Lots are served by the following Water Wells:

a. A Water Well identified as #1, located on Lot 1, serves as the domestic water

supply for Lots 1, 2, 3, 14, 15 and 16, Owners of these Lots are entitled to use
a maximum of .20 acre feet of water (65,170 gallons) per Lot per year. The
total aggregate amount of water to be drawn for domestic use from Water
Well #1 is 1.20 acre feet per year or 391,021 gallons per year,

. A Water Well identified as #2, located on Lot 12, serves as the domestic water

supply for Lots 8,9, 10, 11, 12 and 13. Owners of these Lots  are entitled to
use a maximum of .20 acre feet of water per year or 65,170 gallons per Lot
annustly. The total aggregate amount of water for Water Well #2 is one
(1.20) 391.021 gallons annually,

. A Water Well identified as #3, located on Lot 4, serves as the domestic water

supply for Lots 4, 5, 6, and 7, Owners of These are entitled to use a maximum
of. .20 acre feet of water (65,170 gallons) per Lot annually. The total
aggregate amount of water for Water Well #3 is.8 acre foot per year or
260,680 gallons annually.

18.02 Limited Production. In the event any Water Well is unable to produce the

maximum amount of water described in § 18.01, the arount of water used by
the Owners for the Owner's Lot shall be reduced proportionately to reflect the
actual production from the Water Well serving the Owner’s Lot.

Colinas del Sel'McMillan 11
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18.03 Reserved Easements. The reserved nonexclusive Easement deseribed in
shall include the purposes of maintaining, repairing, and replacing Shared Water
System facilities, including the fire protection system. These easements include
the right of ingress and egress by the Administtator, QOwners and their
representatives {o maintain and replace as necessary the Shared Well System
facilities, including the right to use such vehicles and rigs as are commonly and
reasonably used for the maintenance of the Water Well, pumps, storage tanks,
cisterns and appurtenant facilities.

18.05 Well Administrator. The Owners of the Lots served by each Water Well
shall appoint an Administrator. The first Owner to occupy a house served from a
Water Well shall act as Administrator until three of the Lots served by the
respective Water Well is improved by a residence; at which time the Owners of
the Lots served by the Water Well shall elect by vote the Administrator. Each
Owmer of a Lot is entitled to one (1) vote on matters related to the Water Well
serving the Lot. The Administrator has the following responsibilities:

a. Accept and transfer ownership of the Water Well pursuant to
the requirements of the Office of the State Engineer and
designate well as a domestic well.

LOQZ/CT/0T TQdTIODHE MIdTD 248

b. Submit meter readings for the Water Well and individual Lot
meters to Santa Fe County and Office of the State Engineer on
an annual basis, or as may be required by the County
Development Code or the Office of the State Engineer.

¢. Prepare the annual Well Budget reflecting the total annual Well
Assessment and separately stating the Well Operations
Assessment and the Well Reserve Assessment,

d. Collect the Well Assessment from each Owner to ensure the
continued operation of the Shared Water Well.

. Pay monthly utility bills.

18.06 Initial water well budget and assessment, Until such time as a Well
budget is prepared by the Administrator and approved by a majority of the
Owners benefited by the Water Well, the annual Well Assessment for each Lot
shall be One Hundred Dollars ($100,00) for Well Operations Assessments. The
Well Assessment shall be paid by the Owner within thirty (30) days following
receipt from the Well Administrator of the amount of the Owner’s Well
Assessment, If the Well Assessment is not paid within thirty (30) days, the Well
Administrator shall notify the Board and such delinquent Well Assessment shall
be deemed a Special Expense and the Association shall be entitled to collect the
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_Lots to-be.served by-the-Water Well whether ornot the Owner has connected the
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Well Assessment, on behalf of the Well Administrator, and have all remedies
provided in this Declaration for collection of Common Expenses.

18.07 Allocation of costs before and affet connection to well. All Owners shall
pay the Well Reserve Assessment proportionately, based upon the total number of
Owner’s improvements to the Shared Well, In addition, those Owners who have
connected their improvements to the Shared Well shall pay, in addition to the
Well Reserve Assessment, the Well Operations Assessment, proportionately,
based upon the total number of Lots connected to the Water Well.

18.08 Connection requirements. Each Owner must connsct to the water line
stubbed out to each Lot. A meter must be installed by the Owner at each Lot.
The model and serial number of the meter must be submitted to the Office of the
State Engineer. Well meter readings and meter readings from individual Lots
must be submitted to the Santa Fe County Land Use Administrator by January
31% of each year,

18.09 Limitation on number of wells. There shall be no more than three shared
wells within the subdivision.

00T/82/0T JATEOOHET MddA]
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18.10 Water use limitations, County Code. No additional individual

domestic wells under NMSA 1978 § ;72-12-1 may be drilled on any Lot. The
following additional provisions apply to Lots under the County Development
Code:

a. Water saving fixtures shall be installed in all new construction.
Water saving fixtures shalf include, but not be limited to, low
flush toilets, low flow fixtures, and insulation of hot water
pipes. Toilets shall use no moro than 1.6 gallons per flush;
shower head flows shall not exceed 2.5 gallons per minute; and
faucet flow shall not exceed 2.5 gallons per minute.

b. Evaporative coolers are prohibited.

c¢. Dishwashers shall use no more than 13 gallons in a regular
cvele and shall have a cyele adjustment which allows reduced
water to be used for reduced loads,

d. "Washing machines shall use no more than 43 géllons in the
regular cycle and shall have cycle or water level adjustments
which permit reduced amounts of water to be used for reduced
loads.

e. Low water use landscaping techniques applying the principles :
of xeriscaping shall be utilized. Drip irrigation is encouraged (

R 76

S —



o,

whenever possible. Low water use grasses, shrubs and trees
may be watered as needed during the first and second years of
their growth to become established. Thereafter, such
vegetation shall receive only minimal water as needed by each
species. Lawns of non-native grasses shall not exceed 200
square feet per Lot and shall only be watered with rain water
collected by means confined to the property or with recycled
household gray water. Gray water systems shall meet the
requitements of the New Mexico Construction Industries
Division and the Uniform Plumbing County Development
Code and other applicable regulatory requirements,

f. All water service connections shall be metered with a Santa Fe
County approved meter. Meter readings shall be recorded
atnually within two weeks of January 1%, Meter readings shall
be provided to the County Land Use Administrator, upon
request,

8. Swimming pools, of a permanent or temporary nature are not
permitted, on the Lots. Tempotary wading pools of a diameter
not to exceed eight feet (87) and a depth not to exceed one foot
(17) and covered spas are acceptable at each dwelling unit.

LOOT/EC/0T TdTI0DHEY MHTD 248

h. The water budget submitted to the County Land Use Office
assumes the following areas for landscape:

Buffalo or similar; 200 square feet
Shrubs and horticulture: 200 square feet
Trees 500 square feet

18.11 Water harvesting,  Ordinance 2003-6 adopted by Santa Fe County
requires water harvesting by use of various methods of rainwater catohment
including cisterns, rain barrels, and directing drainage to landscaped area via
swales, tree wells, raised planters or other permaculture techniques. Each Lot
Owner will be required to collect roof drainage for a minimum of 85% of roof
area to be reused for landscape irrigation. Homes consisting of 2,500 square feet
or greater of heated area must install underground, partially buried, or insulated
cisterns, and all landscaping shall be connected to a drip imrigation system,
Homes under 2,500 square feet of heated area must submit a rainwater catchment
plan with their development permit application.

18.12 Special enforcement of Article 18.0 by County, Severability.

a. No amendment may remove, revoke, or make less
restrictive any restriction set forth in this Article 18.0

Cotinas del SobMcMitlan 14
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ARTICLE 19: UTILITIES

Colinas del Sol/McMilian

without the written consent of the Santa Fe County
Land Use Code Administrator,

. The covenants of this Article 18.0 shall run with and

bind the land, shall inure to the benefit of and be
enforceable by the County Land Use Administrator, any

Owner or the Association in any proceeding at law or in
equity against any Person or Persoms viclating or
attempting to violate any covenant or restriction or to
restrain any such violation. Any failure by the county
Land Use Administrator, any Owner or the Association
prevails in any action against any Person or Persons to
enforce any provision hereof, the prevailing party shall
be entitled to recover from such Person or Persons all
costs and reasonable attorneys fees.

. The invalidity or unenforceability of any covenant,

testriction, term or other provision of Article 18.0, as
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction, shall
not impair or adversely affect the wvalidity or
enforceability of any other covenant, tesiriction, term or
provision hereof, which shall be and remain valid and
enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by taws. The
provisions of the Asticle 18,0 shall be governed by and
interpreted under the laws of the State of New Mexico
and are binding upon each Owner, and the Owner’s
successors and assigns.

19.01 General Requirements, All utilities shall be underground. Except for
electric transformers and telephone pedestals,
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Owner has caused this Declaration to be signed as of the

date first above written.

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )

83,

COUNTY OF SANTA FE )

On this 5{) day of
acknowledged before me by the p

72
Notary Public
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... » 2007, the foregoing instrument was
n(s) s¢ name(s) appear above.

SOUNTY oF SANTH FE
STRTE OF NEY MEXIco
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Harry B.Montoya Paul Campos
Commissioner, District 1 Comptissionay, District 4 e
Virgirda Vigi Fack Sullivan \
Commissioner, District 2 Commissioner, Disfrict 5
Michael D Anaya Roman Abeyta
Cemmissianer, District 3 County Manager

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS OF SANTA FE
COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
CASE NO. 06-5250
COLINAS DEL SOL SUBDIVISION,
HIGH DESERT PARTNERSHIP, LLC, APPLICANT
PRELIMINARY AND FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT APPROVAL
ORDER

THIS MATTER came before the Board of County Commissioners of Saata Fe County
(hereinafter referred to as “the BCC” or “the Board”) on April 10, 2007. High Desert
Partnership, LLC, (hereinafter referred to as “the Applicant”) requests preliminary and final
development plan approval and plat approval for a 16-lot residentiat subdivision on 202.03 acres.
The Board, having reviewed the Application and supplemental materials, staff reporis and having
conducted a public hearing , makes the following findings of fact and conclusions of law:
1. The Applicant submitted 2 vicinity map and description of existing site data and a letter of
intent to request preliminary and final development plan approval and plat approval for a 16 lot
subdivision on 202.03 acres. The proposed lot sizes range from 12.5-acres to 13.30-acres, with
an average gross density of 12.5-acres per dwelling unit. The property is in the Basin Fringe
Hydrologic Zone where the minimum lot size is 12.5-acres per dwelling unit.

2. The Applicant, pursuant to Section 16(A)2) of Santa Fe County Ordinance No. 2006-02,

seeks to make a cash payment in liey of its obligation to provide affordable housing by making a

A~ LO0T/0C/90 THTIOOHT AT ~d5

cash payment that is equal to or of

cater value than would have been required if the project
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had been constructed or created affordable units. In deciding whether to accept a cash payment
as an alternative means of compliance, the County shall consider the following where applicable:

a.  whether the proposed cash payment is equal to or greater than the cost
of constructing cquivalent affordable units within the project, applying the methodology set forth
in the Affordable Housing Regulations;

b.  whether a proposed cash payment or dedication of property creates a
substantial surplus of funds within the dedicated housing fund or trust specific to that purpose;

¢.  whether the appraised value of the property proposed to be dedicated is
equal fo or greater than the total estimated value of the affordable units that would have been
constructed within the project, applying the methodology set forth in the Affordable Housing
Regulations; and

d.  whether a cash payment or property provides a greater overall public
benefit than if the affordable units were constructed within the project or minor project that
would have otherwise provided for mixed-income development.
Ordinance No. 2006-02, § 16 (F).
3. The Applicant proposes payment of $393,100.00 in lieu of creating affordable housing units.
4. The Applicant’s proposal to make a payment in lieu of creating affordable housing units
should be accepted. The proposed cash payment is equal to or greater than the cost of
constructing equivalent affordable housing units, Additionally, the cash payment can be utilized
to provide affordable housing in a more appropriate area that has wider services available to
residents and to enable the Housing Authority to target specific locations where higher density

development can be integrated. The large size of the Iots, the distance of the project from
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community services, and the maintenance costs associated with large lots on private roadways,
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septic systems, and shared welis make a cash payment more appropriate than constructing three
affordable lots on the property.

5. Atthe April 10, 2007 public hearing, Staff stated its position that the Application meets the

requirements of the Santa Fe County Land Development Code. Staff recommended approval of o
the Applicetion, including the requested cash payment in lieu of the creation of affordable units
on the property, subject to conditions.

6. Atthe April 10, 2007 public hearing, no one spoke in opposition to the Application,
7. The Application should be approved subject to Staff conditions, with the following
amendments and conditions:

a. Staff’s recommended condition No. 3 should be amended to read as follows: *Payment of
$84,708.31 to the Santa Fe Southern Railway for improvements to the Spur Ranch Road
ctassing,”

b. Staff’s recommended condition No. 9 should be amerded to read as follows: “Water use
on this property will be restricted to 0.20 acre feet per year per lot. Water restrictive covenants
must be recorded with the Final Plat. A water meter must be installed for each lot and annual
readings must be submitted to the County Hydrologist by January 31% of each year.”

¢, The following condition No. 16 is added: “The Applicant shall construct Avenida de los

Compradres from Spur Ranch Road to the northerly property line to county standards fof a local
sub-collector.”

7IT IS SO ORDERED
I certify that the Applicaﬁon was aﬁproved by the Board of County Commissioners on this 7

/ 3 #ﬂ) day of £ 2007.

The Board of County Commissioners of Santa Fe County
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Virginia Vigil,

ATTEST;
MIMJ W—/
Valerie Espinoza, Santa Fe County Clerk

Appr})ved as to form:

Stephen C. Ross, Santa Fe County Attorney

BCC QRDER
COUNTY OF SANTA FE 3 PAGES: 4
STATE OF NEW MEXICO } 88 .
I Hereby Certify That This Instrument Was Filed for
Record On The 28TH Day Of Jurne, @A.D0., 2867 at 89:35
And Uas Duly Recorded as Instrument ¥ 1488357
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